
 

❖  denotes an item that appears on monitor  

Agenda is subject to change up to meeting time 

 

 

Board of Mayor and Aldermen 

Meeting Agenda 

Town Hall 

334 Atoka-Munford Avenue 
 

Tuesday, January 12, 2021 

7:00 p.m. 

 

 

Invocation & Pledge of Allegiance 
 

I. Call to Order & Roll Call 

 

II. Minutes         

a. Regular Board Meeting – December 08, 2020 Exhibit A 

 

III. Reports 

a. Financial Report  ❖ Exhibit B 

i. Sales Tax Report 

 

IV. Old Business 

a. Ordinances & Resolutions 

i. Ordinance – Second Consideration – Zoning Ordinance Amendments  Exhibit C 

ii. Ordinance – Second Consideration – Sign Amendment Exhibit D 

iii. Ordinance – Second Consideration – Planned Unit Development Exhibit E 

 

V. New Business 

a. Appointments from the Mayor  

i. Vice Mayor and Standing Committee Appointments Exhibit F  

ii. Planning Commission Appointments 

1. Regional Planning Representative 

2. Board of Mayor and Aldermen Representatives 

 

b. Rezoning Requests 

i. Ordinance - 673 Maple Drive – R-1 to Neighborhood Commercial Exhibit G 

ii. Ordinance - Munford Development – Maple Drive Re-zoning from R-1 to R-2 Exhibit H 

 

VI. Departmental Reports  

a. Code Enforcement  Director Wallace 

b. Fire Department                 Chief Posey 

c. Parks Department                                                                                                                Director Isbell 

d. Police Department                                                                                                                    Chief Poole  

e. Public Works Department                                                                                                 Director Patrick 

 

VII. Miscellaneous Items from the Mayor, Board of Aldermen, Town Administrator 

 

VIII. Citizen Concerns 

 

IX. Adjourn 

 



 

 

Office of the Town Administrator 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To:  Honorable Mayor Daryl Walker & Board of Aldermen 

From: Marc Woerner, Town Administrator 

Re: Agenda items for January 12, 2021 

 

 

1. Exhibit A – Board Meeting Minutes - The minutes from the Board's regular monthly meeting 

in December are included for review and approval. 

 

2. Exhibit B – Financial Reports – The monthly report detailing fiscal year financial 

performance through the month of November is included in the packet for your review.  Sales 

Tax revenues for November 2020 came in at $232,794, an increase of 25.55 %, or $47,381 

over the same month in 2019. Historically, December and January have provided strong sales 

tax numbers so we will see when next month’s report comes out. 

 

Exhibits C – E – the following ordinances are on the agenda for a second consideration. If the 

Board directs, and with adequate Public Notice/Advertisement of a Public Hearing, the final 

consideration will take place at the February 9, 2021 meeting. Board members were previously 

emailed a complete annotated, marked-up version of the Municipal Code last week that contains 

all zoning changes. If any board members desire a hard copy of the complete annotated, marked-

up version of the Code, please let me know and I will gladly print one out. The draft ordinances 

contained in your packet are the same as the December 2020 meeting. 

 

3. Exhibit C – Ordinance – Second Consideration - Miscellaneous Zoning Ordinance 

Amendments – The proposed ordinance revises numerous sections of the zoning ordinance. 

The proposal has been submitted to the Planning Commission for review and comment over 

several public meetings. The Planning Commission has recommended the proposed revisions 

be submitted to the Board of Mayor and Aldermen for adoption. Board members were email a 

complete annotated version of the Municipal Code last week. The draft ordinance contained in 

your packet is the same as December 2020 meeting. This shall be the second consideration of 

these revisions to the Zoning Ordinance. 

 

4. Exhibit D – Ordinance – Second Consideration - Sign Amendment to Zoning Ordinance 

– The proposed ordinance requires monument signs in the N-C district and defines and 

regulates off-premises signs. The ordinance was reviewed by the Planning Commission and 

has been recommended by them to be submitted to the Board of Mayor and Aldermen for 

adoption. This shall be the second consideration of the ordinance. 



 

 

5. Exhibit E – Ordinance – Second Consideration - Planned Unit Development (PUD) 

Ordinance – The ordinance would provide options and flexibility as an overlay to several 

zoning districts. The overlay would allow housing design and flexibility, as well as 

commercial/mixed use options within existing zoning districts. The PUD ordinance was 

reviewed by the Planning Commission on several occasions and was recommended to be 

submitted to the Board of Mayor and Aldermen for adoption. This shall be the second 

consideration of the ordinance. 

 

6. Exhibit F – Appointments from the Mayor – Vice Mayor and Standing Committees – As 

required by the Atoka Charter and the Code of Ordinances, Mayor Walker will be making 

appointments to the position of Vice Mayor and assigning Aldermen to the various standing 

Board committees. Mayor Walker will also be making a regional representative appointment 

to the Planning Commission.  

 

7. Exhibit G - Rezoning Request – Ordinance – 673 Maple Drive - R-1 to Neighborhood 

Commercial – The applicant, Karen Stokes, is requesting to rezone her property. She intends 

to operate a doggie day-care. The request was heard by the Planning Commission at their 

December 2020 meeting. The Planning Commission recommended the request be considered 

for approval by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. 

 

8. Exhibit H – Rezoning Request – Ordinance – Maple Drive - Munford Development – The 

applicant, Munford Development, is requesting to rezone their property from R-1 to R-2 for a 

residential subdivision. The request was heard by the Planning Commission at their December 

2020 meeting. The Planning Commission recommended the request be considered for approval 

by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. 

 

 

9. Department Reports – Monthly reports from the Departments have been included in the 

Board packet for your review.   

 

If you have questions on any of these items prior to the Board meeting, please do not hesitate to 

call me. 

 



January 12, 2021 

Exhibit A 

 

TOWN OF ATOKA 
334 Atoka-Munford Avenue 

Atoka, Tennessee  38004 

Phone: (901) 837-5300 
 

www.TownofAtoka.com 
 

Town of Atoka Board of Mayor and Aldermen 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

December 08, 2020 7:00 p.m. 

 

The Invocation was led by Pastor Jay Jerrell of Gateway Baptist Church. All present joined in the pledge to the flag. 

 

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Walker at 7:00 p.m. The meeting was broadcast as well electronically via 

Zoom. 

 

The Town of Atoka Board of Mayor and Aldermen met with the following: 

Present: Mayor Daryl Walker, Aldermen Walker Adams, Barry Akin, Guy Critelli, Danny Feldmayer via Zoom, 

Brett Giannini and John Harber. 

 

Also present: Town Recorder Debbie Pickard, Town Administrator Marc Woerner, Town Attorney Kasey Culbreath, 

Police Chief Jessie Poole, Fire Chief Henry Posey, Park Director Dorothy Isbell, Public Works Director Dalton 

Patrick, Codes Director Rex Wallace and attached list. 

 

Absent: None 

 

Minutes Approval: Regular Monthly Board Meeting November 10, 2020 – Exhibit A - Alderman Adams made a 

motion to accept the minutes as presented. Alderman Harber seconded the motion. Roll Call. Adams-yes, Harber-yes, 

Critelli-yes, Akin-yes, Giannini-yes and Feldmayer-yes. Motion carried. 

 

Financial Report: Exhibit B – Administrator Woerner reviewed the financial report as presented. Alderman Critelli 

made a motion to accept the report as presented. Alderman Akin seconded the motion. Akin-yes, Giannini-yes, 

Adams-yes, Harber-yes, Critelli-yes and Feldmayer-yes. Motion carried. 

 

Old Business:  

1. Ordinance – 20-12-01 – Final Consideration – Discharge of Fireworks – Exhibit C – The Board had no 

objection to reading the ordinance by title only. The Recorder read the ordinance by title only. Alderman 

Critelli made motion to approve the ordinance as presented. Alderman Akin seconded the motion. Roll Call. 

Giannini-no, Feldmayer-yes, Adams-no, Harber-yes, Critelli-yes and Akin-yes. Motion carried. 

 

2. Request for Proposal – Comprehensive Plan – Exhibit D – Administrator Woerner reviewed the request 

for proposal as presented. Alderman Feldmayer made a motion to approve as presented. Alderman Harber 

seconded the motion. Roll Call. Feldmayer-yes, Adams-yes, Harber-yes, Critelli-yes, Akin-yes, Giannini-

yes. Motion carried.  

 

Adjournment – Mayor Walker motioned to adjourn the Board of Mayor and Aldermen Sine De, meaning that this 

Board has concluded its business and adjourns with no future plan to meet.  The meeting adjourned at 7:20 pm. 

 

Oath of Office Ceremony – Mayor Walker administered the oath of office to each candidate starting with, Alderman 

re-elect Brett Giannini, Alderwoman elect Christy Renfrow and Alderman elect Cody Pace.  

 

Call to order: Mayor Walker called the meeting to order at 7:35 p.m.  

 

The Town of Atoka Board of Mayor and Aldermen met with the following: 

Present: Mayor Daryl Walker, Aldermen Barry Akin, Danny Feldmayer via Zoom, Brett Giannini, John Harber, Cody 

Pace and Alderwoman Christy Renfrow. 

 

Also present: Town Recorder Debbie Pickard, Town Administrator Marc Woerner, Town Attorney Kasey Culbreath, 

Police Chief Jessie Poole, Fire Chief Henry Posey, Park Director Dorothy Isbell, Public Works Director Dalton 

Patrick, Codes Director Rex Wallace and attached list. 

 

Absent: None 



 

New Business: 

1. Special Presentation - Service Recognition – Mayor Walker presented a plaque to Aldermen Walker 

Adams and Guy Critelli thanking them for their service to the Atoka Board of Aldermen. Alderman Adams 

and Alderman Critelli thanked the Board for the opportunity and said it was their honor to serve on the Board 

of Aldermen. 

 

Ordinances and Resolutions: 

1. Resolution 20-12-01 – Approving an Agreement for Legal Services – Exhibit E – Alderman Feldmayer 

made a motion to approve as presented. Alderman Giannini seconded the motion. Roll call. Feldmayer-yes, 

Harber-yes, Pace-yes, Renfrow-yes Akin-yes and Giannini-yes. Motion carried. 

 

2. Resolution 20-12-02 – Approving Compensation for Chief of Police – Exhibit F- Alderman Feldmayer 

made a motion to approve as presented. Alderman Akin seconded the motion. Roll call. Renfrow-yes, Akin-

yes, Giannini-yes, Feldmayer-yes, Pace-yes, Harber-yes. Motion carried. 

 

3. Ordinance – First Consideration – Zoning Ordinance Amendments – Exhibit G – The Board had no 

objection to reading the ordinance by title only. The Recorder read the ordinance by title only. Alderman 

Giannini made motion to approve the ordinance as presented. Alderman Harber seconded the motion. Roll 

Call. Akin-yes, Giannini-yes, Feldmayer-yes, Harber-yes, Pace-yes and Renfrow-yes. Motion carried. 

 

4. Ordinance – First Consideration – Sign Amendments to Zoning Ordinance – Exhibit H – The Board 

had no objection to reading the ordinance by title only. The Recorder read the ordinance by title only. 

Alderman Akin made a motion to approve the ordinance as presented. Alderman Giannini seconded the 

motion. Roll Call. Giannini-yes, Feldmayer-no, Harber-yes, Pace-yes, Renfrow-yes and Akin-yes. Motion 

carried. 

 

5. Ordinance – First Consideration – Planned Unit Development – Exhibit I – The Board had no objection 

to reading the ordinance by title only. The Recorder read the ordinance by title only. Alderman Feldmayer 

made a motion to approve the ordinance as presented. Alderwoman Renfrow seconded the motion. Roll Call. 

Feldmayer-yes, Pace-yes, Harber-yes, Renfrow-yes Akin-yes and Giannini-yes. Motion carried. 

 

6. Discussion – Open Burning Permit – Exhibit J – Fire Chief Posey and Fire Lt. Scott reviewed the permit 

as presented. After discussion Mayor Walker appointed a committee to bring back recommendations for the 

Board’s consideration at the February 09, 2021 meeting. The committee members appointed are Chief Posey 

Chief Poole, Administrator Woerner, Code Director Wallace, Alderman Feldmayer and Alderman Akin. 

 

Departmental Reports: 

1. Code Enforcement: Director Wallace reviewed the report as presented.  

  

2. Fire Department: Chief Posey reviewed the report as presented. Chief Posey advised the Board that the 

Santa’s Ride event will be Thursday December 10th and Saturday December 12th starting at 6pm. 

 

3. Parks Department: Director Isbell reviewed the report as presented. Director Isbell advised the Board of 

the following: The Veterans Day Ceremony and Atoka Tree Lighting events were both a huge success. The 

Pioneer Park bank stabilization expects to be done next week. The Greenway Trail lighting is done. Alderman 

Akin asked Director Isbell to look into purchasing a PA system to be used for the Town events. 

 

4. Police Department: Chief Poole reviewed the report as presented. Chief Poole complimented the 21-gun 

salute presentation at the Veterans Day Ceremony. Chief Poole thanked the Board for approving the 

resolution for his extended employment as police chief. Chief Poole thanked Town Attorney Culbreath for 

coordinating the workshop for legal advice regarding Will’s. 

 

5. Public Works Department: The Board reviewed the report as presented. Director Patrick advised the Board 

of the following: ASPAC has paved several streets around Town. The crack sealer for road repairs is still not 

working. TDOT has been contacted about the damaged guard railing at Main St. and Kimbrough. 

 

Miscellaneous Items from the Mayor, Board of Aldermen, Town Administrator:  

1. Mayor Walker advised that the Town employee Christmas dinner will be Tuesday December 15th at 6pm at 

Gateway Baptist Church. 

 



2. Alderman Pace advised the Board that he noticed that there is a dark area at Edith Lane and the Greenway 

Trail, and he would like for additional lighting to be placed at the intersection. 

 

3. Administrator Woerner advised the Board that the streetlights project at the Sterling Ridge Subdivision has 

been completed by Southwest Electric and the lights are now active. 

 

4. Alderman Akin advised the Board that the Southwest Electric/Aeneas fiber internet project has laid 184 miles 

of fiber and expect to start splicing the fiber in six subdivisions in Atoka. 

 

Citizen Concerns:  

1. Keith Richter of 124 Smithers expressed concerns regarding Exhibit G and the R-3 zone. Mr. Richter asked 

the Board to consider implementing an ordinance to restrict gravel pits near residential neighborhoods. Mr. 

Richter thanked the fire department for their work on Stroud Cir. with the recent structure fire. 

 

2. County Commissioner Stephen Shopher advised that the landfill will be closed Christmas Eve and Christmas 

Day. 

 

3. Larry Kyle of 745 Elizabeth thanked the Board for passing the fireworks ordinance although it did not 

accomplish as much detail as he would like. 

 

4. Persia Phelps of 20 Nugget Lane thanked the Board for passing the fireworks ordinance although it did not 

accomplish as much detail as  she would like. 

 

Adjournment: 

Alderman Feldmayer motioned to adjourn. Alderman Harber seconded the motion. The meeting adjourned at 

8:57pm.  

 

 

              

W. Daryl Walker, Mayor     Deborah Pickard, Recorder 

 
 

 

 

 



General Fund 6 month % of Budget

Revenues: Actual Budget Total Budget

Property Tax 1,678,799 75.5% 2,222,500

Sales Tax 1,431,060 56.7% 2,523,000

Grants 476,661 19.1% 2,497,277

Other Revenues 1,352,986 144.8% 934,441

Total 4,939,506 8,177,218

Expenditures:

Legislature & Judicial 32,998 54.1% 61,000

Finance & Administration 217,388 39.5% 550,763

Police 1,025,835 48.8% 2,100,592

Fire 825,931 51.8% 1,594,245

Planning & Inspection 150,507 71.4% 210,916

Streets 258,855 13.0% 1,998,877

Parks & Recreation 1,059,392 65.0% 1,630,590

Total 3,570,906 8,146,983

 

Excess Revenue Over Expenditures 1,368,600 30,235

Cash on Hand at End of Period (1) 3,501,650

State Street Aid Fund

Revenue 171,723 52.0% 330,000

Expenditures 60,327 18.3% 330,000

Excess Revenue Over Expenses 111,396 0

Cash on Hand at Beginning of Year 162,818

Cash on Hand at End of Period 274,214

Drug Fund

Revenue 713 1.8% 40,000

Expenditures 2,359 39.3% 6,000

Excess Revenue Over Expenses -1,646 0 34,000

Cash on Hand at Beginning of Year 29,118

Cash on Hand at End of Period 27,472

(1) Does not include Fire Dept, Celebrate, and Park AC of: 472,052

 

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL CONDITION VS. BUDGET

For the Six Months Ending December 31, 2020

January 12, 2021

Exhibit B



Solid Waste Collections

Revenue 313,819 53.2% 590,000

Expenditures 190,711 33.2% 575,000

Excess Revenue Over Expenses 123,108 0 15,000

Cash on Hand at Beginning of Year 123,460

*Cash on Hand at End of Period 246,568

Cash on Hand at Beginning of Year 2,554,547$      

Cash on Hand at End of Period 2,279,873$      

Total Bonds/Notes outstanding 12/31/20 2,294,901$      

 

12/31/2020 12/31/2019

Revenues 1,307,262$      1,130,979$      

Expenses

Water Purchases 270,401$         217,244$         

Sewer Treatment Fees 63,140$           69,496$           

Payroll and Benefits 319,081$         237,812$         

System Maintenance 228,798$         181,965$         

System Operation 52,978$           38,444$           

Billing and Payments 42,345$           42,963$           

Other Expenses 110,822$         97,623$           

Depreciation 237,500$         191,666$         

Total 1,325,065$      1,077,213$      

Net Income (loss) (17,803)$          53,766$           

Total - All Funds:

Note: Prior year amts for System Operation, Billing and Payments, and Other Expenses combined under Other Expenses.

7,351,509                            

Net Income(Regulatory Basis) vs. Prior Year

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

WATER FUND
For the Six Months Ended December 31, 2020

Exhibit B



July August September October November December January February March April May June

 FY2019 $183,816 $185,486 $188,385 $186,380 $171,144 $184,847 $285,771 $181,725 $192,442 $200,018 $198,441 $202,183

 FY2020 $194,490 $193,375 $192,911 $193,488 $185,413 $196,659 $302,253 $183,870 $185,345 $227,174 $229,495 $237,671

 FY2021 $236,527 $222,037 $215,189 $220,218 $232,794

Change 21.61% 14.82% 11.55% 13.82% 25.55% -100.00% -100.00% -100.00% -3.69% 13.58% 15.65% 17.55%

Revenue $42,037 $28,661 $22,278 $26,731 $47,381 $(7,097) $27,156 $31,055 $35,488

$236,527 

$222,037 
$215,189 $220,218 

$232,794 

 $(50,000)

 $-

 $50,000

 $100,000

 $150,000

 $200,000

 $250,000

 $300,000

 $350,000

Atoka Sales Tax Revenue

 FY2019  FY2020  FY2021 Change Revenue

January 12, 2021

Exhibit B



Page 1 of 5 
 

January 12, 2021 

Exhibit C ORDINANCE NUMBER______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ATOKA ZONING ORDINANCE TO DEFINE MOBILE HOME, 
MANUFACTURED HOUSING, MODULAR HOUSING AND WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS 
FACILITIES, TO RENAME TITLE 14.4 “SPECIFIC STANDARDS FOR WIRELESS COMMUNICATION 
FACILITIES” AND REDEFINE THE PURPOSE OF THE REGULATIONS, TO CHANGE THE 
ABBREVIATION FOR THE INDUSTRIAL ZONE TO “I” FROM “M”, AND TO LIMIT PRINCIPAL 
BUILDINGS PER LOT TO ONE, TO SPECIFY FLOOD HAZARD DEFINTIONS TO BE SPECIFIC TO THAT 
SECTION,  TO ADD USES PERMITTED ON APPEAL TO N-C AND G-C ZONES, TO ADD MULTIPLE 
FAMILY USE AS A PERMITTED USE IN THE R-3 ZONE, TO ADD GOLF COURSES AND COUNTRY 
CLUBS AS A USE PERMITTED ON APPEAL IN THE R-1 ZONE, TO REMOVE NONPRESCRIPTIVE 
WORDING IN DAY CARE REGULATIONS, TO CHANGE THE DESIGN REQUIREMENTS FOR USES IN 
THE R-3 ZONE, TO ALLOW TOWN PLANNER TO TAKE APPEALS TO THE BZA, CHANGE BUILIDNG 
INSPECTOR TO TOWN PLANNER TO BRING PATTERN BOOK AMENDMENT TO GOVERNING 
AUTHORITIES, TO ADD “DEVELOPED” PROPERTIES TO DESIGN GUIDELINES, TO ADD 
INSTITUTIONAL USES PERMITTED ON APPEAL IN RESIDENTIAL ZONES TO DESIGN REVIEW 
REQUIREMENT. 
 
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 2 DEFINITIONS. To add the following definitions to Article 2: 
 
Dwelling, Manufactured Home: A factory-built, single-family structure that is manufactured 
under the National Manufactured Home Construction and Safety Standards Act, is transportable 
in one or more sections, is built on a permanent chassis, and is used as a place of human 
habitation, but which is not constructed with a permanent hitch or other device allowing 
transport of the unit other than for the purpose of delivery to a permanent site, and which does 
not have wheels or axles permanently attached to its body or frame. It must be permanently 
connected to utilities and used for year-round occupancy. It may consist of two or more 
components that can be separated when transported but designed to be joined into one integral 
unit.  Manufactured Home regulations are enumerated in Section 3.14. 
 
Dwelling, Mobile Home: A dwelling, constructed prior to June 15, 1976, transportable in one or 
more sections, which is built on a permanent chassis and designed to be used with or without a 
permanent foundation when connected to the required utilities. It does not include recreational 
vehicles or travel trailers. A mobile home by this definition does not qualify as a manufactured 
housing unit. Mobile homes are not permitted in the Town of Atoka.  
 
Modular Home: A home constructed of factory-produced components, including wall panels of 
open or closed construction, and not involving a permanent or temporary steel chassis. Open 
wall panels are wall sections containing exterior sheathing only, with necessary plumbing, 
electrical, heating, air conditioning, insulation, and interior sheathing installed at the building 
site. Closed wall panels are shipped from the factory as complete wall units containing necessary 
electrical, plumbing, heating, air conditioning, insulation, interior, and exterior sheathing 



Page 2 of 5 
 

installed and connected at the site. All service systems and connections as well as construction 
must comply with all local and state codes and ordinances.  
 
Wireless Communication Facilities: Wireless Communication Facilities shall include all buildings, 
cabinets, structures and facilities, including generating and switching stations, repeaters, 
antennas, transmitters, receivers, towers, relating to the low power mobile voice transmission, 
data transmission, video transmission, and radio transmission, or wireless transmission; 
accomplished by linking a wireless network of radio wave transmission devices (including, but 
not limited to wire, cable, fiber optics, laser, microwave, radio, satellite, portable phones, pagers, 
mobile phones, or similar facilities) to conventional ground-wired communications systems 
(including, but not limited to telephone lines, video, and/or microwave transmission) through a 
series of short range, contiguous cells that are part of an evolving cell grid. This includes all 
facilities to aid in "personal wireless services" as defined in the Telecommunications Act of 1996, 
which includes Federal Communications Commission (FCC) licensed commercial wireless 
telecommunication services including cellular, personal communications services (PCS), 
specialized mobile radio (SMR), enhanced specialized mobile radio (ESMR), paging, and similar 
services that currently exist or that may in the future be developed.  
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 12-PROVISIONS GOVERNING M (INDUSTRIAL) DISTRICTS. Change 
abbreviation for Industrial zone to “I” from “M”, wherever it is located in the district regulations 
and the zoning ordinance in general.  
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 – GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS, add Section 3.9 
Maximum Number of Principal Buildings Permitted, “Every building hereafter erected or 
structurally altered shall be located on an approved lot and in no case shall there be more than 
one main building on one lot except as otherwise provided in the ordinance.”  Re-number after 
this section. 
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 10, Sections 10.6, 11.6, 12.6 Maximum number of Principal Buildings 
Permitted for G-C, N-C, and I zones. Delete “All uses, none”  
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLES 5, 6, 7, 8 & 9, 5.7, 6.7, 7.7, 8.7, 9.7 delete “uses other than residential 
shall have no limitations on the number of buildings, provided however, that the aggregate of all 
buildings shall not cover more than thirty-five (35) percent of the entire lot area.” 
 
TITLE 14.4, Change “Specific Standards for Non-Inhabitable Structures that Exceed Height 
Limits” to “Specific Standards for Wireless Communication Facilities”. 
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 14 – EXCEPTIONS AND MODIFICATIONS 
 
SECTION 14.4 Under “Specific Standards for Non-Inhabitable Structures that Exceed Height 
Limits”, delete first paragraph, “In addition to the requirements of the applicable district, a special 
exception shall be granted for non-inhabitable structures when the standards established are met 
as part of the condition for issuing the permit in the applicable zone districts. The provisions of 



Page 3 of 5 
 

this section may be varied or reduced if the proposed plan provides for unique and innovative 
treatment of physical features or landscaping that meet the intent and purpose of this section.”  
 
Replace it with: “The purpose of this Section is to establish guidelines regulating the location of 
telecommunication towers, antennae, and ground structures with the objective of minimizing 
their number, protecting, and promoting public safety, and mitigating adverse visual impacts on 
the community while promoting the provision of telecommunications service to the public. 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this ordinance, telecommunications towers, antennae, 
and ground structures, when permitted by federal law and the laws of the State of Tennessee, 
shall be regulated and governed by the following use regulations and requirements.” 
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 13 PROVISIONS GOVERNING FH (FLOOD HAZARD DISTRICT) 13.2 
DEFINITIONS – replace “Ordinance” with “Flood Hazard Section”, “Unless specifically defined 
below, words or phrases used in the Flood Hazard section of this Ordinance shall be interpreted 
as to give them the meaning they have in common usage and to give this Ordinance its most 
reasonable application given.” 
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 10 and ARTICLE 11 10.3 & 11.3 Uses Permitted on Appeal – Replace 
“None” with the following, “Public uses, including, but not limited to, municipal, state or federal 
uses such as schools, museums, office buildings, utilities; Churches; Private or parochial schools. 
Philanthropic or religious institutions other than churches.”  
 
TITLE 14-201, ARTICLE 11, PROVISIONS REGARDING R-3 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS, Permitted 
Uses add “Multiple-family units, designed for occupancy of three (3) or more families living 
independently of each other.” 
 
TITLE 14-201, ARTICLE 6, PROVISIONS REGARDING R-1 RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS, add “golf 
courses and country clubs” to Uses Permitted on Appeal.  
 
TITLE 14-201, ARTICLE 3, 3.15.4.2 Day Care Centers and Group Day Care Homes, delete “shall 
be oriented to the care of 5-7 children”.  
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3, GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS, 3.15.2 Design 
Standards for Multi-Family, General Commercial, Neighborhood Commercial, and Industrial 
Districts, 3.15.2.3 Applicable Standards, Exterior materials and details, change from 50% to 
75%, “In R-3 Districts, all multi-family buildings shall have a minimum of 75% of the exterior 
façades (excluding windows, trim and doors) covered in brick, cast stone, cultured stone, or an 
alternative masonry material acceptable to the planning commission.” 
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 – GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS 
 
SECTION 3.15.2 DESIGN STANDARDS FOR MULTI-FAMILY, GENERAL COMMERCIAL, 
NEIGHBORHOOD COMMERCIAL AND INDUSTRIAL DISTRICTS, 3.15.2.3 APPLICABLE 



Page 4 of 5 
 

STANDARDS, add “as well as institutions such as schools, community centers, and churches 
regardless of the zone they are in.” 
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 16 – BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS (BZA) 
SECTION 16.3 APPEALS add Town Planner or his/her designee, as well as Building Inspector, to 
the following provision - “An appeal to the Board of Zoning Appeals may be taken by any person, 
firm or corporation aggrieved, or by any governmental officer, department, board or bureau 
affected by any decision of the building inspector based in whole or in part upon the provisions of 
this ordinance. Such appeal shall be taken by filing with the Board of Zoning Appeals a notice of 
appeal, specifying the grounds thereof. The Building Inspector or the Town Planner or his/her 
designee shall transmit to the Board all papers constituting the record upon which the action 
appealed was taken. The Board shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of the appeal, giving 
public notice thereof, as well as due notice to the parties in interest, and decide the same within 
fifteen (15) days from the date of the hearing. Upon the hearing any person or party may appear 
and be heard in person or by agent or attorney.” 
 
ARTICLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 – GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS 
 
SECTION 3.15.2.2 Pattern book/Guidelines, add Town Planner and his/her designee to this 
section: 
“In order to create a better understanding of design and site planning expectations for these 
districts, the Mayor and Board of Aldermen may additionally adopt by resolution a set of design 
standards or pattern book that provides guidelines for new construction including architectural 
style, height, landscaping, and open space as well as common elements for the district such as 
street lighting, sidewalks, street furniture, etc. Such guidelines shall be subject to review and 
recommendations by the Planning Commission prior to adoption. In addition, the Town 
Administrator or his/her designee and the Town Planner or his/her designee shall review the 
proposal with the affected property owners at a public meeting and the legislative body shall 
conduct a public hearing to receive formal comment prior to adoption of such guidelines.” 
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 – GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS  
 
SECTION 3.15.2 Design Standards for Multi-Family, General Commercial, Neighborhood 
Commercialxvii and Industrial Districtsxviii, xix, 3.15.2.1, Purpose of standards, add the word 
developed to properties included – “Such standards are needed to encourage and protect the 
investment of individual property owners when their property is developed, redeveloped and 
improved. Accordingly, any new building or redevelopment of an existing property in the district 
shall be designed and constructed to be architecturally compatible in materials, scale, and 
massing. Such standards are not intended to create a monolithic architectural appearance in 
these districts, but to encourage creative and attractive building elements and finishes.” 
 
SECTION 2.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its final passage, the public 
welfare requiring it. 
 



Page 5 of 5 
 

PASSED on the First Consideration by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, 
Tennessee on the 8th day of December 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, Tennessee on 
the 9th day of February 2021. 
 
PASSED on the Second Consideration by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, 
Tennessee on the 9th day of February 2021. 
 
 
 
_____________________  
W. Daryl Walker, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________  
Town Recorder 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 13-7-203 and 13-7-303 notice is hereby given 15 
days in advance, of a public hearing to be held by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of Atoka, 
Tennessee on the 9th day of February 2021 at 6:45 PM at Atoka’s Town Hall.  The hearing is to 
receive public input on amending the Town of Atoka’s Municipal Zoning Ordinance by the 
following: 
 
All interested persons are encouraged to attend and to comment on this rezoning. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



January 12, 2021 

Exhibit D ORDINANCE _______ 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE TOWN OF ATOKA’S MUNICIPAL ZONING ORDINANCE BY 
AMENDING SIGN REGULATIONS, REQUIRING MONUMENT SIGNS IN THE N-C, AND DEFINING 
AND REGULUATING OFF-PREMISES SIGNS 
 
SECTION 1.  SIGN PROVISION AMENDMENTS  
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 2-DEFINITIONS, add the following: 
 

Outdoor Advertising or Off-premise sign. A sign, which advertises goods, products or 
services which are not sold, manufactured or distributed on or from the premises or 
facilities on which the sign is located.  
On-premise sign. A free-standing sign that advertises products or services that are sold, 
produced, manufactured or furnished on the property where the sign is located.  
Substitution Clause. A clause in the ordinance that expressly allows noncommercial 
content to replace the message on any permitted or exempt sign.  
Freestanding Sign. A sign erected and maintained on a freestanding frame, mast or pole 
not attached to any building, and not including monument signs. 
Monument Sign. A sign with no clearance from the ground to the base of the sign, that is 
detached from a building and having a support structure that is a solid-appearing base 
constructed of a permanent material, such as concrete block or brick. 
Sign, Window: A sign that is applied or attached to the exterior or interior of a window or 
located in such a manner within a building that it can be seen from the exterior of the 
structure through a window. Merchandise offered for sale within two and one-half feet of 
the window is not considered a window sign so long as it is not affixed or attached to the 
window.  
Master sign program. A coordinated sign plan that includes details of all signs that are or 
will be placed on a master planned site, like a PUD, or shopping center site. 

 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 2- DEFINITIONS, delete the following: 
 

Freestanding Sign. Any sign supported by structures or supports that are placed on, or 
anchored in, the ground and that are independent from any building or other structure. 

 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS Section 3.9.2. - 
Applicability – Effect, add the following provision: 
 

“A non-commercial message may be substituted for a commercial message on 
any sign permitted by the code. “ 

 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS Section 3.9.8 Master 
or Common Signage Plan provisions be deleted, except the following: 
 

3.9.8.7 Procedures – “A Master or Common Signage Plan shall be included in any 
development plan, site plan, planned unit development plan, or other official plan required 
by the Town for the proposed development and shall be processed simultaneously with 
such other plan.” 

 



TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS Section 3.9.10 Signs 
Exempt from Regulation under This Ordinance, the following provision shall be deleted:  
 

“Any sign inside a building attached to a window or door. “ 
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS Section 3.9.10 Signs 
Exempt from Regulation under This Ordinance, the following provision shall be added: 
  

“Signs in or on windows not exceeding twenty (20) percent of the window area”. 
 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS, Section 3.9 Signs, 
delete “Table A” and “Table B” in their entirety and replace with the following Section 3.9.12 
with subsequent sections being renumbered accordingly: 
 

3.9.12 Signs by Type and Zoning District 
The following provision shall regulate signs stating the permitted type, size and placement 
of signs. All permitted signs are limited to one type of permitted sign per street frontage 
unless otherwise noted in the General Provisions of this Ordinance. 
 
In addition to the below requirements, signs shall not be placed within any required utility 
easements, and signs shall not obstruct views within the sight triangle at roadway or 
driveway intersections. 
 

1. Sign Regulations for all Residential Districts 
A. For Residential Developments (including subdivision identification signs and 

Apartment Identification signs) the maximum size and number of signs that 
the owner or owners of the residential development may erect and maintain 
at the entrances to the development are regulated as follows: 

a. Residential subdivision identification and apartment complex 
identification signs must be of the monument sign style and are limited 
to one sign, no more than forty (40) square feet in area and eight (8) 
feet in height. The sign(s) must maintain a setback of at least five (5) 
feet from the property line.  

b. Residential subdivision monument signs that are lighted must be 
externally lit and designed not to shine light onto residences or 
oncoming car traffic. 

c. Residential monument signs must be landscaped at the base.  
B. For Residential Districts, R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4 

a. Building markers are permitted. 
b. Off-premise signs are not permitted. 
c. The following signs are permitted for Institutions located in Residential 

Zones: 
i. Building signs are permitted for institutional uses such as 

churches and schools. Institutional signs may not convey a 
commercial message, and must be no larger than 10 square 
feet in area.  

ii. Monument signs for Institutions are limited to one sign, no 
more than forty (40) square feet in area and eight (8) feet in 
height. The signs must maintain a setback of at least five (5) feet 



from the property line. Monument signs must be landscaped at 
the base. 

iii. Institutional monument signs that are lighted, must be 
externally lit  and designed not to shine light onto residences or 
oncoming car traffic. 

d. Real Estate Signs are permitted. 
e. Political Signs are permitted in accordance with Section 3.9.22. 

 
2. Sign Regulations for N-C (Neighborhood Commercial) District 

A. Monument signs 
a. Monument signs are limited to one sign, no more than forty (40) 

square feet in area and eight (8) feet in height. The sign must maintain 
a setback of at least five (5) feet from the property line. 

b. Monument signs that are lighted may be internally or externally lit, but 
must be designed not to shine light onto residences or oncoming car 
traffic. 

c. Monument signs must be landscaped at the base. 
B. Wall Signs 

a. Wall signs are limited to one sign, with a maximum area of 10% of the 
wall area, or not more than 150 square feet, which is smaller. 

C. Canopy Signs, Marquee Signs, Projecting Signs, Roof Signs, and Suspended 
Signs 

a. These signs are subject to design review at the time of Site and Design 
Review by the Planning Commission. Marquees, projecting signs, or 
suspended signs may not extend into or above the public right-pf-way. 

D. Building Markers are permitted. 
E. Off-premise signs are not permitted. 

 
3. Sign Regulations for G-C (General-Commercial) District 

A. Freestanding Signs (including Off-site signs) 
a. Freestanding signs are limited to one sign, no more than eighty-one 

(81) square feet, limited to twenty-five (25) feet in height, and must 
maintain a setback of ten (10) feet from the property line. 

b. Freestanding signs for property within the U.S. Highway 51 Corridor are 
limited to no more than three hundred  (300) square feet in area and 
fifty (50) feet in height. The sign must maintain a setback of at least ten 
(10) feet from the property line. 

B. Monument Signs 
a. Monument signs are limited to one sign, no more than sixty (60) square 

feet in area and fifteen (15) feet in height. The sign must maintain a 
setback of at least ten (10) feet from the property line, may be 
internally or externally lit (designed not to shine light onto residences 
or oncoming car traffic), and must be landscaped at the base. 

C. Wall Signs 
a. Wall signs are limited to ten percent (10%) of the wall area or 200 

square feet whichever is smaller. 
D. Canopy Signs, Marquee Signs, Projecting Signs, Roof signs, and Suspended 

Signs are subject to design review under the Site and Design Review process 



by the Planning Commission. Marquee Signs, Projecting Signs, and Suspended 
Signs may not extend into or above the public right-of-way. 

E. Building Markers are permitted. 
F. Changeable Message Signs 

a. Signs that have a changeable message component must not contain 
any flashing component. The message display time of a changeable 
message sign must remain static for a minimum of four (4) seconds 
with a maximum change time of two (2) seconds. The brightness of a 
changeable message sign shall be governed by the standards of TCA 
54-21-122. 
 

4. Sign Regulations for Industrial District 
A. Freestanding Signs  

a. Freestanding signs are limited to one sign, no more than sixty (60) 
square feet in area and no more than fifteen (15) feet in height. The 
sign must maintain a setback of ten (10) feet from the property line. 

b. Freestanding signs in the U.S. Highway 51 Corridor are limited to no 
more than three hundred (300) square feet in area and no more than 
fifty (50) feet in height. The sign must maintain a setback of at least ten 
(10) feet from the property line. 

B. Monument Signs 
a. Monument signs are limited to no more than sixty (60) square feet in 

area and fifteen (15) feet in height. The sign must maintain a setback 
of at least ten (10) feet from the property line, may be internally or 
externally lit (designed not to shine light onto residences or oncoming 
car traffic), and landscaped at the base. 

C. Wall Signs 
a. Wall signs are limited to no more than ten percent (10%) of the wall 

area or 200 square feet, whichever is smaller. 
D. Canopy Signs, Marquee Signs, and Projecting Signs are subject to design 

review upon Site and Design Review by the Planning Commission. Marquee 
signs or projecting signs may not extend into or above the public right-of-way. 

E. Building Markers are permitted. 
F. Changeable Message Sign 

a. Signs that are also changeable message signs must not contain any 
flashing component. The message display time of a changeable 
message sign must remain static for a minimum of four (4) seconds 
with a maximum change time of two (2) seconds. The brightness of a 
changeable message sign shall be governed by the standards of TCA 
54-21-122. 

 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS,  that the following 
Section 3.9.4 Signs Allowed on Private Property with and without Permits, be deleted in its 
entirety: 
 

3.9.4 Signs Allowed on Private Property with and without Permits. Signs shall be 
allowed on private property in the Town in accordance with, and only in accordance with, 
Table A. If the letters “OK” appear for a sign type in a column, such sign is allowed without 
prior permit approval in the zoning districts represented by that column. Special conditions 



may apply in some case. If the letters “NO” appear for a sign type in a column, such a sign 
is not allowed in the zoning districts represented by that column under any circumstances. 
If the letter “P” appears, a permit is required. If the letter “C” appears, such sign is allowed 
once signed-in in the office of the Code Enforcer. 

 
Although permitted under the previous paragraph, a sign designated by an “OK”, “P”, or “C” in 
Table “A” shall be allowed only if: 
 

3.9.4.1 The sum of the area of all building and freestanding signs on the lot conforms with 
the maximum permitted sign area as determined by the formula for the zoning district in 
which the lot is located as specified in Table “B”; or, 

 
3.9.4.2 The size, location, and number of signs on the lot conforms with the requirements 
of Table “B”, which establishes permitted sign dimensions by sign type, and with any 
additional limitations listed in Table “A”: or, 

 
3.9.4.3 The characteristics of the sign conform to the limitations on characteristics listed 
in Table “A”. 

 
TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 3 GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS, that the following 
Section 3.9.4 Signs Allowed on Private Property with and without Permits, be deleted in its 
entirety: 
 

3.9.4 Signs Allowed on Private Property with and without Permits. Signs shall be 
allowed on private property in the Town in accordance with, and only in accordance with, 
Section 3.9.12. 

 
TITLE 14-201, ARTICLE 3 GENERAL PROVISIONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS, Section 3.9 Signs, 
be amended as follows: 
 

All further reference to “Table A” and “Table B” be deleted ad replaced with language  
referencing Section 3.9.12 

 
TITLE 14-201, ARTICLE 3 GENERAL PROVISONS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS, Section 3.9 Signs, 
be amended to add the following provision: 
 

Nonconforming Signs  
“In instances where a sign is nonconforming to any of the requirements of this ordinance, 
such sign and any supporting structure other than a building, may be allowed although 
such sign does not conform to the provisions hereof. No such nonconforming sign may be 
enlarged or altered in any way (including changing the sign face, except on changeable 
copy signs which comply with this regulation or legal Outdoor Advertising Signs), which 
increases its nonconformity, or relocated. No sign, which has been damaged 50 percent 
or more of its fair market value, shall be restored except in conformity with the regulations 
of this ordinance. However, any sign, which is prohibited by this ordinance and was also 
prohibited by any previous Town of Atoka Zoning Ordinance, shall be discontinued and 
removed.” 
 



SECTION 2.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its final passage, the public 
welfare requiring it. 
 
PASSED on the First Consideration by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, 
Tennessee on the 8th day of December, 2020. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING held by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, Tennessee on 
the 9th day of February 2021. 
 
PASSED on the Second Consideration by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, 
Tennessee on the 9th day of February 2021. 
 
 
 
_____________________  
W. Daryl Walker, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________  
Town Recorder 
 
 
 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 13-7-203 and 13-7-303 notice is hereby given 15 
days in advance, of a public hearing to be held by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of Atoka, 
Tennessee on the 9th day of February 2021 at 6:45 PM at Atoka’s Town Hall.  The hearing is to 
receive public input on amending the Town of Atoka’s Municipal Zoning Ordinance by the 
following: 
 
All interested persons are encouraged to attend and to comment on this rezoning. 
 



Page 1 of 16 
 

January 12, 2021 

Exhibit E ORDINANCE NUMBER_____ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE TOWN OF ATOKA’S MUNICIPAL ZONING 

ORDINANCE BY ADDING A NEW ZONING DISTRICT FOR PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENTS 

TITLE 14-201 ARTICLE 13-PROVISIONS GOVERNING PLANNED UNIT 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICTS (PUD) 

13.1 Intent  

This section is intended to provide the means and the guidelines through which 

tracts of land may be developed through an overall unified approach rather than the 

traditional lot-by-lot treatment afforded by other districts in this Ordinance. It is 

intended to provide a maximum of design freedom in order to create a better living 

environment, by making the best use of topography and land features and by 

permitting the developer an opportunity to more fully utilize the physical 

characteristics of the site through the reduction of lot sizes, the absence of yard and 

bulk restrictions and the planned mixing of uses. Through the requirement of a 

development plan, it is the intent that property under this section will be developed 

through a unified design providing continuity between the various elements and 

ultimately leading to a better environment. Increased residential densities may be 

permitted under this Section if such increase can be substantiated on the basis that 

the superior design makes greater densities possible with no reduction of amenities. 

This section should not be utilized as a device just for making increased densities 

more acceptable or as a means of circumventing the Town's development 

regulations.  

13.2 Objectives  

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen may, upon proper application, rezone a site of 

any size to PUD to facilitate the use of flexible techniques of land development and 

site design by providing relief from zone requirements designed for conventional 

developments. In addition, the Board may establish standards and procedures, 

including restricting land uses to only those compatible to surrounding 

development, prior to a rezoning in order to obtain one or more of the following 

objectives:  

1. Promote flexibility in design and permit planned diversification in the 

location of structures.  

2. Promote the efficient use of land to facilitate a more economic arrangement 

of buildings, circulation systems, land use and utilities.  

3. Preserve to the greatest extent possible the existing landscape features and 

amenities and to utilize such features in a harmonious fashion.  

4. Provide for more usable and suitably located recreation facilities and other 

public and common facilities than would otherwise be provided under 

conventional land development procedures.  



Page 2 of 16 
 

5. Combine and coordinate architectural styles, building forms and building 

relationships within the planned developments.  

6. Ensure a quality of construction commensurate with other developments 

within the Town.  

7. Creation of a safe and desirable living environment for residential areas 

characterized by a unified building and site development program.  

8. Rational and economic development in relation to public services.  

9. Efficient and effective traffic circulation, both within and adjacent to the 

development site.  

10. Creation of a variety of housing compatible with surrounding 

neighborhoods to provide a greater choice of types of environment and 

living units.  

13.3 Planned Unit Developments  

Under this section, Planned Unit Developments (PUD) shall be permitted, subject 

to the stated requirements. PUD's are established by overlaying a Preliminary 

Development Plan over the existing district. The overlays are as follows: PUD 

(Planned Unit Development) over all zoning districts. A zoning amendment is 

required following the procedures outlined in this section and in accordance with 

Title 14.20, Article 17 of this Zoning Ordinance.  

13.4 Modification of District Regulations  

Planned Unit Developments may be constructed in the above zoning districts 

subject to the standards and procedures set forth below:  

1. Except as modified by and approved in the Ordinance approving a 

preliminary development plan, a Planned Unit Development shall be 

governed by the regulations of the district or districts in which the said 

Planned Unit Development is located.  

2. The Ordinance approving the preliminary development plan for the Planned 

Unit Development may provide for such exceptions from the district 

regulations governing area, setback, width and other bulk regulations, 

parking, and such subdivision regulations as may be necessary or desirable 

to achieve the objectives of the proposed Planned Unit Development, 

provided such exceptions are consistent with the standards and criteria 

contained in this section and have been specifically requested in the 

application for a Planned Unit Development and further provided that no 

modification of the district requirements or subdivision regulations may be 

allowed when such proposed modification would result in:  

a. Inadequate or unsafe access to the Planned Unit Development.  

b. Traffic volume exceeding the anticipated capacity of the major 

street network in the vicinity.  



Page 3 of 16 
 

c. An undue burden on public parks, recreation areas, schools, fire and 

police protection and other public facilities which serve or are 

proposed to serve the Planned Unit Development.  

d. A development which will be incompatible with the purposes of this 

Ordinance.  

Such exceptions shall supersede the regulations of the zoning district in which the 

Planned Unit Development is located.  

13.5 Coordination with Subdivision Regulations  

The uniqueness of each proposal for a Planned Unit Development may require that 

specifications for which the width and surfacing of streets, public ways, public 

utility rights-of-way, curbs and other standards may be subject to modification from 

the specifications established in the Subdivision Regulations. Modifications may 

be incorporated only with the review of the Atoka Planning Commission and 

approval of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen as part of its review of the 

Development Plan for a PUD and granted as a variance in the preliminary approval 

of the subdivision which must be concurrent with the final approval by the Planning 

Commission of the plan.  

1. It is the intent of this Ordinance that subdivision review under the 

Subdivision Regulations be carried out simultaneously with the review of a 

Planned Unit Development under this section of the Zoning Ordinance.  

2. The development plans submitted under Procedures for Planned Unit 

Development Approval must be submitted in a form that will satisfy the 

requirements of the Subdivision Regulations for preliminary and final plats.  

3. The requirements for both this section of the Zoning Ordinance 

and those of the Subdivision Regulations shall apply to all PUD's, and all 

actions of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen pertaining to PUD's shall be 

based upon a recommendation by the Planning Commission.  

13.6 General Provisions  

The following general provisions shall apply to any Planned Unit Development 

Districts created by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen.  

13.7 Application for Planned Unit Development Permit Required  

Each application for a Planned Unit Development shall be submitted in accordance 

with requirements of these regulations and the requirements set forth in the 

Subdivision Regulations. Variances to the requirements of both regulations may be 

granted upon review by the Planning Commission.  

13.8 Waiver of Board of Zoning appeals Action  



Page 4 of 16 
 

No action of the Board of Zoning Appeals shall be required in the approval of a 

Planned Unit Development District.  

13.9 Ownership and Division of Land  

No tract of land may be considered for, or approved as a PUD, unless such tract is 

under the single ownership of a landowner. For the purpose of this Ordinance, a 

landowner may be a person, partnership, corporation, association or any other legal 

entity entitled to own property. The holder of a written option to purchase, a party 

purchaser to a contract for the sale of real property contingent upon the success of 

a PUD application for the property, or any governmental agency shall be considered 

landowners for the purpose of this Section. Unless otherwise provided as a 

condition of approval of a PUD, the landowner of an adopted PUD may divide and 

transfer parts of such development. The transferee shall complete each section and 

use and maintain it in strict conformance with the final development plan.  

13.10 Design 

1. Professional Design:  The Atoka Planning Commission shall not consider 

any development plan for any proposed Planned Unit Development, either on a 

preliminary or final basis, nor shall the Atoka Board of Mayor and Aldermen 

concur with any preliminary development plan for a proposed Planned Unit 

Development unless such proposed plan includes a certification that the services of 

a licensed civil engineer or licensed land surveyor was utilized in the preparation 

of the master plan for utility placement and storm water facility development. 

Applicants may also use the services of a land planner or landscape architect in the 

development of the plan. 

2. Site and Design Review: At a minimum, the Site and Design Review 

Standards in the Atoka Zoning Ordinance shall apply to commercial, multiple 

family, industrial, and institutional uses of any PUD overlaying any zoning district 

in the Town. 

3. Architecture: A pattern book, a building guide that regulates the 

architectural massing, building types, heights, facades, styles, materials, and details 

and establishes the basic design guidelines that will ensure that the architecture of 

the individual buildings within the development will be in keeping with the overall 

vision, shall be included in the proposed Planned Unit Development plan submitted 

to the Planning Commission and the Board of Mayor and Aldermen. The book shall 

illustrate key components of building design such as the shape of windows and 

doors, roof pitches, eave details, column details, dormer details, and types of 

porches that are appropriate for that style. 

Identical or similar single-family buildings or elevations may not be repeated more 

frequently than every sixth house along the same side of any street. Buildings shall 

be considered similar if they have similar door and window configuration, direction 

of roof pitch, building mass and building form. Attached unit buildings shall 



Page 5 of 16 
 

provide a variation in building height, setbacks, rooflines, window, door openings, 

materials, and colors. Buildings shall relate well to the streetscape through the 

provision of front porches, doors, windows, and architectural details that face the 

street and assist in minimizing the dominance of garages. For at least 50% of all 

units, garages shall be side entry, rear entry or front entry with the garage recessed 

a minimum of five (5) feet behind the front building line.  

4. Development Period; Staging  

The expeditious construction of any Planned Unit Development authorized under 

these provisions shall be undertaken to assist in the assurance of the full completion 

of the development in accordance with the adopted final development plan.  

13.11   Start of Development  

1. Within five years from the date of preliminary approval of a PUD, actual 

construction shall have commenced in such development. Actual construction is 

defined to include the placing of construction materials in a permanent position and 

fastened permanently or extensive grading including demolition or removal of 

existing structures necessary for the development. If no substantial construction, as 

determined by the Building Inspector, has begun within the time stated in the final 

development and construction schedule, the final development plan shall lapse 

upon written notice to the applicant from the Planning Commission and shall be of 

no further effect. At its discretion and for good cause, the Planning Commission, 

may extend for a reasonable time, not to exceed one year, the period for the 

beginning of construction.  

 

2. Completion Period  

The Atoka Planning Commission may establish a 

reasonable period of time for the completion of the Planned Unit Development at 

the time the PUD district is established.  

3. Staging of Development  

The Planning Commission may elect to permit the staging of development, in which 

case, the following provision shall be complied with:  

Each stage shall be so planned and so related to existing surrounding and available 

facilities and services that failure to proceed to the subsequent stages will not have 

an adverse impact on the development or its surrounding at any stage of the 

development. The development staff shall review any proposed phasing plan and 

recommend to the Planning Commission a plan for the phasing and recommended 

construction of improvements including site improvements, streets, surface and 

subsurface drainage, water lines, sewer lines, parking areas, landscaping, plantings 



Page 6 of 16 
 

and screening. The Developer shall also prepare a cost estimate of the 

recommended improvements to be approved by the Town Engineer for bonding 

purposes.  

4. No building designed or intended to be used, in whole or in part, for commercial 

purposes shall be constructed prior to the construction of less than 25% of the 

dwelling units proposed in the plan, or construction of 100 dwelling units, 

whichever is smaller.  

13.12 Common Open Space and Public Facilities  

The requirements of common open space and public facilities shall be in accordance 

with the provisions of this Section.  

1. A minimum total area of 10% of the gross residential area shall be set aside as 

parks and playgrounds. Of this 10%, a maximum of one half may be covered 

with water. A maximum of 5% of the area designated to be parks and 

playgrounds may be covered with structures to be used in the recreational use 

of the area.  

2. Common open space may be usable for active or passive recreational purposes 

and must provide visual, aesthetic, and environmental amenities. The uses 

authorized for the common open space must be appropriate to the scale and 

character of the Planned Unit Development considering its size, density, 

expected population, topography and the number and type of structures to be 

provided.  

3. Common open space must be suitably improved for its intended use, but open 

space containing natural features worthy of preservation may be left 

unimproved. Any buildings, structures and improvements to be located in the 

common open space must be appropriate to the uses which are authorized 

therefore and must conserve and enhance the amenities of the common open 

space, having regard to its topography and the intended function of the common 

open space.  

4. The development phasing sequence which is part of the preliminary 

development plan must coordinate the improvement of the common open space, 

the construction of the buildings, structures and improvements in the common 

open space, the construction of public improvements and the construction of 

residential dwellings in a Planned Unit Development, but in no event shall 

occupancy permits for any phase of the final development plan be issued unless 

and until the open space which is part of that phase has been dedicated or 

conveyed and improved.  

5. No common open space of a Planned Unit Development shall be conveyed or 

dedicated by the developer or any other person to any public body, 

homeowners’ association or other responsible party unless the Atoka Planning 

Commission has determined that the character and quality of the tract to be 

conveyed make it suitable for the purpose for which it was intended. The 

Planning Commission may give consideration to the size and character of the 

dwellings to be constructed within the Planned Unit Development, the 



Page 7 of 16 
 

topography and existing trees, the ground cover and other natural features, the 

manner in which the open space is to be improved and maintained for 

recreational or amenity purposes, and the existence of public parks or other 

public recreational facilities in the vicinity.  

6. All land shown on the final development plan as common open space may be 

either:  

a. Conveyed to a public body, if said public body agrees to accept 

conveyance and to maintain the common open space and any buildings, 

structures or improvements which have been placed on it; or  

b. Conveyed to an organization for ownership and maintenance subject to 

the following:  

(a)  The Atoka Planning Commission and Atoka Board of Mayor and 

Aldermen may require that the landowner provide for and establish an 

organization for the ownership and maintenance of any common open 

space and such organization shall not be dissolved nor shall it dispose 

of any common open space, by sale or otherwise (except to an 

organization conceived and established to own and maintain the 

common open space), without first offering to dedicate the same to the 

Town of Atoka and said dedication be approved by the Board of Mayor 

and Aldermen. However, the conditions of any transfer shall conform 

to the adopted final development plan.  

(b)  In the event that the organization established to own and maintain 

common open space, or any successor organization, shall at any time 

after the establishment of the Planned Unit Development fail to maintain 

the common open space in reasonable order and condition in accordance 

with the adopted final development plan, the Building Official may 

serve written notice upon such organization and/or the owners or 

residents of the Planned Unit Development and hold a public hearing. 

After thirty (30) days when the deficiencies of maintenance are not 

corrected, the Building Official shall call upon any public or private 

agency to maintain the common open space.  

(c) The cost of such maintenance by such agency shall be assessed 

proportionally against the properties within the Planned Unit 

Development that have a right of enjoyment of the common open space 

and shall become a lien on said properties.  

(d) If the common open space is deeded to a Homeowners' Association, 

the developer shall file a declaration of covenants and restrictions that 

will govern the association, to be submitted with the application for 

preliminary approval. The provisions shall include but not be limited to 

the following:  

(i)  The Association must be set up before homes are sold.  



Page 8 of 16 
 

(ii)  Membership must be mandatory for each homebuyer and 

any successive buyer.  

(iii)  The open space restrictions must be permanent, not just for 

a period of years.  

(iv)  The Association must be responsible for liability insurance, 

local taxes and the maintenance of recreational and other 

facilities.  

(v)  Homeowners must pay their pro rata share of the cost of the 

assessment levied by the association to meet changed needs.  

13.13 Dedication of Public Facilities  

The Atoka Planning Commission, as a condition of approval and adoption and in 

accordance with the final development plan, may require that suitable areas for 

streets, public rights-of-way, schools, parks and other public areas be set aside, 

improved and/or dedicated for public use.  

13.14 Bond Requirement for Improvements  

The Planning Commission shall require that a performance bond be furnished and 

filed with the Town of Atoka for private and public improvements in coordination 

with the procedures set forth in Atoka’s Municipal Subdivision Regulations.  

13.15 Relation to Utilities, Public Facilities  

PUD districts shall be so located in relation to sanitary sewers, water lines, storm 

and surface drainage systems and other utilities systems and installations that 

neither extension nor enlargement of such systems will be required in manner, 

form, character, location, degree, scale, or timing resulting in higher net public cost 

or earlier incursion of public cost than would development in a form generally 

permitted in the area. Such districts shall be so located with respect to schools, 

parks, playgrounds and other public facilities required as to have access in the same 

degree as would development in a form generally permitted in the area.  

13.16 Site Planning  

Site planning within any PUD shall provide for the protection of the development 

from potentially adverse surrounding influences and shall also 

provide for the protection of surrounding areas from potentially adverse influences 

within the development, including, but not limited to, area storm water management 

plans, hydrological studies, water and wastewater facilities, streets, noise and other 

environmental considerations. All reports and plans shall be submitted to the 

planning staff for review and approval and shall be made a part of the final 



Page 9 of 16 
 

development plan. Site plans shall be required for all uses except single family 

detached dwellings.  

13.17 Accessory Off-Street Parking and Loading  

Accessory off-street parking and loading in the PUD shall be regulated by Article 

Title 14-201, Article 3.10 of this Zoning Ordinance, but may be modified to meet 

the goals of the PUD.  

13.18 Specific Standards and Criteria for Planned Unit Developments  

In addition to the general standards and general provisions set forth above, Planned 

Unit Developments shall comply with the requirements and standards that follow: 

13.19 Permitted Uses  

The following uses are permitted subject to review by the Planning Commission 

and approval of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen.  

c. Any permitted use, accessory use, or conditional use allowed in the 

underlying residential district or districts.  

d. Other uses specifically permitted by the Planning Commission and 

the Board of Mayor and Aldermen in their review of the Preliminary 

Development Plan for the PUD development. 

13.20 Residential Densities  

In order to encourage ingenuity, imagination, and high quality design, regulations 

on residential areas will not specify minimum lot area per dwelling unit but will 

limit density in residential areas to 5 families per acre in single family/two family 

dwellings, or 20 families per acre in multifamily dwellings, subject to the 

appropriate provision of municipal services. This will allow clustering of dwellings 

to provide maximum open space.  

13.21 Density Bonuses 

In order to qualify for a density bonus for single-family and two-family residential 

uses (base of 5 units per acre) the property proposed for Planned Unit Development 

shall meet one (1) or more of the following:  

1. The applicant must demonstrate in writing and other appropriate materials, that 

the property proposed for a density bonus contains significant and/or unique 

site conditions, significant natural features, or large open spaces which would 

otherwise be developed but which will be preserved from development as a 

result of exercising the density bonus (conservation development); 

a. Open Space Calculations. A PUD density bonus shall be based on 

an aggregate of one (1) or more of the following elements for which 



Page 10 of 16 
 

the PUD qualifies, as determined during the Preliminary Plan review; 

provided the total density bonus shall not exceed a maximum of sixty 

(60%) percent of the units otherwise permitted. Where applicable, 

the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, after recommendation by the 

Planning Commission, may award a smaller bonus than the 

maximum permitted below. In determining the amount, if any, of a 

density bonus to be awarded, the Board of Mayor and Aldermen and 

Planning Commission shall consider the location, character, quality 

and extent of the elements provided.  

b. Clustered development may qualify for density bonuses in 

accordance with the following:  

i. Not less than thirty (30) percent open space. Five (5) percent 

density bonus.  

ii. Not less than thirty-five (35) percent open space. Ten (10) 

percent density bonus.  

iii. Not less than forty (40) percent open space. Fifteen (15) 

percent density bonus.  

iv. Not less than forty-five (45) percent open space. Twenty (20) 

percent density bonus.  

v. Not less than fifty (50) percent open space. Twenty-five (25) 

percent density bonus.  

vi. Not less than fifty-five (55) percent open space. Thirty-five 

(35) percent density bonus.  

vii. Not less than sixty (60) percent open space. Forty-five (45) 

percent density bonus; and, 

c. The PUD provides one (1) or more of the following features:  

i. Walking trails/bikeways/pathways (excluding sidewalks 

which are required) through the entire PUD and/or links to 

adjacent facilities of a similar nature (10%). 

ii. Parks and playgrounds in excess of the required 10% of gross 

residential area (10%). 

iii. Innovative design features, such as traditional neighborhood 

development, traffic calming measures, innovative 

stormwater management (such as rain gardens, pervious 

surface paving, or vegetative swales), and other similar 

features throughout the development (20%).  

iv. Dedication of acreage for needed public facilities (10%). 

Lot dimensions and lot sizes must be shown on the Preliminary Development Plan 

which must be reviewed by the Planning Commission and approved by the Board of 

Mayor and Aldermen.  

13.22 Accessibility of Site for Automobiles  

All proposed streets and driveways shall be adequate to serve the residents, 

occupants, visitors or other anticipated traffic of the Planned Unit Development. 



Page 11 of 16 
 

The location of the entrance points of the streets and driveways upon existing public 

roadways shall be subject to the approval of the Planning Commission. 

13.23 Off-Street Parking  

Off-street parking shall be conveniently accessible to all dwelling units and other 

uses. Where appropriate, common driveways, parking areas, walks and steps may 

be provided, maintained and lighted for night use.  

Screening of parking and service areas shall be required through use of trees, 

shrubs, berms, and/or hedges and screening walls.  

13.24 Pedestrian Circulation  

The development should include a system of pedestrian walkways for safe 

circulation to schools, churches, shopping and other traffic generators. The 

pedestrian circulation system and its related walkways shall be separated, whenever 

feasible, from the vehicular street system in order to provide an appropriate degree 

of separation of pedestrian and vehicular movement.  

13.25 Privacy  

The Planned Unit Development shall provide reasonable visual and acoustical 

privacy for dwelling units within and adjacent to the Planned Unit Development. 

Protection and enhancement of property and the privacy of its occupants may be 

provided by the screening of objectionable views or uses and reduction of noise 

through the use of fences, insulation, natural foliage, berms and landscaped barriers.  

13.26 Procedures for Planned Unit Development Approval  

The provisions of this Section govern the procedure for approval of all Planned 

Unit Developments provided herein.  

13.27 Pre-Application Procedure  

1. At least fifteen (15) days prior to filing any application for a Planned Unit 

Development, the prospective applicant shall request a pre-application 

conference with the Planning Staff.  

2. To obtain information, each applicant shall confer with the planning staff in 

connection with the preparation of the Planned Unit Development application. 

The general outlines of the proposal, evidenced schematically by sketch plans, 

are to be considered before submission of the Planned Unit Development 

application. Thereafter, the planning staff shall furnish the applicant with 

comments regarding such conference, including appropriate recommendations 

to inform and assist the applicant prior to his preparing the components of the 

Planned Unit Development application.  



Page 12 of 16 
 

13.28 Preliminary Development Plan  

A preliminary development plan shall be submitted to the Planning Commission 

with the application for the Planned Unit Development.  

13.28.1 Written Documents  

1. A legal description of the total site proposed for development, 

including a statement of present and proposed ownership and present and proposed 

zoning.  

2.   A statement of planning objectives to be achieved by the PUD 

through the particular approach proposed by the applicant. This statement should 

include a description of the character of the proposed development and the rationale 

behind the assumptions and choices made by the applicant.  

3.   A development schedule indicating the approximate date when 

construction of the PUD or stages of the PUD can be expected to begin and be 

completed.  

4.   If the Planned Unit Development is proposed to be constructed in 

stages or units during a period extending beyond a single construction season, a 

development schedule indicating:  

5.  the approximate date when construction of the project can be 

expected to begin;  

6.  the order in which the phases of the project will be built;  

7.   the minimum area and the approximate location of common open 

space and public improvements that will be required at each stage.  

8.   A statement of the applicant's intentions with regard to the future 

selling or leasing of all or portions of the PUD, such as land areas, dwelling units, 

etc.  

9.   Quantitative data for the following: total number and type of 

dwelling units; parcel size; proposed lot coverage of buildings and structures; 

approximate net residential densities; total amount of open space (including a 

separate figure for usable open space).  

10.  A statement setting forth in detail either, 1. the exceptions which 

are required from the zoning and subdivision regulations otherwise applicable to 

the property to permit the development of the proposed Planned Unit Development, 

or, 2. the bulk regulations under which the Planned Unit Development is proposed.  

13.28.2 Site Plan and Supporting Maps  



Page 13 of 16 
 

A site plan and any maps necessary to show the major details of the proposed PUD 

must contain the following minimum information:  

1. The existing site conditions including contours at two-foot (2’) intervals, 

water courses, flood plains, unique natural features and tree cover.  

2. Proposed lot lines and plot designs.  

3. The location and floor area size of all existing and proposed buildings, 

structures and other improvements including maximum heights, types of 

dwelling units, and density per type.  

4. The location and size in acres or square feet of all areas to be conveyed, 

dedicated or reserved as common open spaces, public parks, recreational 

areas, school sites and similar public and semi-public uses.  

5. The existing and proposed circulation system of arterial, collector and local 

streets including off-street parking areas, service areas, loading areas and 

major points of access to public rights-of-way (including major points of 

ingress and egress to the development). Notations of proposed ownership, 

public or private should be included where appropriate.  

6. The existing and proposed pedestrian circulation system, including its 

interrelationships with the vehicular circulation system, indicating proposed 

treatments of points of conflict.  

7. The existing and proposed utility systems including sanitary sewers, storm 

sewers, water lines, and drainage. (Detailed drainage plan and calculations 

shall be handled at the final development plan stage.). 

8. A general landscape plan indicating the treatment of materials used for 

private and common open spaces, including locations of existing trees or 

clusters of trees. 

9. Enough information on land areas adjacent to the proposed PUD to indicate 

relationships between the proposed development and existing and proposed 

adjacent areas, including land uses, zoning classifications, densities, 

circulation systems, public facilities and unique natural features of the 

landscape.  

10. The proposed treatment of the perimeter of the PUD including materials and 

techniques used such as screens, fences and walls.. 

11. Any additional information as required by the Planning Commission 

necessary to evaluate the character and impact of the proposed PUD.  

13.29 Preliminary Development Plan Approval Process and Effect of Approval  

At least thirty (30) days prior to the Planning Commission meeting at which it is to 

be considered, the owner of the property or his agent shall submit to the Planning 

Commission the Preliminary Development Plan, a completed application form, and 

all other information required under this Section. The Planning Commission shall 

review the application and shall recommend to the Board of Mayor and Aldermen 

to: approve; disapprove; or approve the Planned Unit Development subject to 

conditions. The Planning Commission may also defer a decision or take the matter 

under advisement until the next regular meeting.  



Page 14 of 16 
 

The Board of Mayor and Aldermen shall hold a public hearing on the application 

for the Planned Unit Development and the preliminary plan after receipt of 

recommendations from the Planning Commission and any notice of appeal. The 

Board of Mayor and Aldermen shall establish a date for a public hearing and shall 

provide written notice and publication in accordance with Title 14-201, Article 17.3 

of this Ordinance. The Board of Mayor and Aldermen shall render a decision on 

any appeal and shall: approve; disapprove; or approve the proposed Planned Unit 

Development and preliminary development plan subject to conditions, and if 

approved, shall set forth the conditions imposed.  

The approved preliminary development plan shall bind the applicant, owner, and 

mortgagee, if any, and the Town of Atoka with respect to the contents of such plan.  

The Atoka Planning Commission may amend or waive a development schedule 

upon submission of written justification by the applicant.  

13.30 Final Development Plan Approval Process  

An application for approval of a final development plan of the entire Planned Unit 

Development, if it is to be completed in one phase, or of a portion of the Planned 

Unit Development, if it consists of more than one phase, shall be submitted by the 

applicant at least thirty (30) days prior to the Planning Commission meeting.  

The application for final development plan approval shall be filed with the Planning 

Commission and shall include, but not be limited to, the following:  

1. A plan/plat suitable for recording with the Tipton County Register's Office.  

2. Proof referred to on the plan and satisfactory to the Town Manager as to the 

provision and maintenance of common open space.  

3. All certificates, seals and signatures required for the dedication of land and 

recordation of documents.  

4. Tabulations of each separate use area, including land area, bulk regulations 

and number of dwelling units per gross acre and the gross floor area for commercial 

and industrial uses.  

5. Location and type of landscaping.  

6. Location and dimensions of utility and drainage facilities.  

7. All other requirements of a Final Plan under the Atoka Municipal 

Subdivision Regulations.  

A decision shall be rendered on a final development plan by the Planning 

Commission. If a final plan is disapproved by the Planning Commission the 



Page 15 of 16 
 

applicant may file a final development plan that substantially conforms to the 

approved preliminary plan, or the applicant may file for an amendment to the 

approved preliminary development plan.  

After a final development plan is approved by the Planning Commission, the 

Building Inspector shall record such plan in the Tipton County Register's Office 

after receipt of any necessary bonds, fees and contracts to provide improvements 

required in the Town of Atoka Subdivision Regulations and the required signatures 

for recordation have been secured.  

13.31 Zoning Administration – Permits  

The Building Official may issue building permits for the area of the Planned Unit 

Development covered by the approved final development plan for work in 

conformity with the approved final development plan and with all other applicable 

Ordinances and regulations. However, the Building Official shall not issue an 

occupancy permit for any building or structure shown on the final development 

plan of any stage of the Planned Unit Development unless the open space and public 

facilities allocated to that stage of the development schedule have been conveyed 

to the designated public agency or Homeowners' Association or a responsible party. 

The Building Official shall issue a certificate of occupancy for any completed 

building or structure located in an area covered by the approved final development 

plan if the completed building or structures conforms to the requirements of the 

approved final development plan and all other applicable regulations and 

Ordinances.  

13.32 Reapplication if Denied  

If any application for a Planned Unit Development is denied by the legislative body, 

a reapplication pertaining to the same property and requesting the same Planned 

Unit Development may not be filed within twelve (12) months of the date final 

action was taken on the previous application unless such reapplication is initiated 

by the Planning Commission or authorized by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen.  

13.33 Procedure for Amendment  

A Planned Unit Development and the approved preliminary development plan may 

be amended in accordance with the procedure that governed its approval as set forth 

in this Section.  

SECTION 2.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its final passage, 

the public welfare requiring it. 

PASSED on the First Consideration by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of 

Atoka, Tennessee on the 8th day of December 2020. 



Page 16 of 16 
 

PUBLIC HEARING held by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, 

Tennessee on the 9th day of February 2021. 

PASSED on the Second Consideration by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town 

of Atoka, Tennessee on the 9th day of February 2021. 

 

_____________________  

W. Daryl Walker, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: 

_____________________  

Town Recorder 

 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 13-7-203 and 13-7-303 notice is hereby 

given 15 days in advance, of a public hearing to be held by the Board of Mayor and 

Aldermen of Atoka, Tennessee on the 9th day of February 2021 at 6:45 PM at Atoka’s 

Town Hall.  The hearing is to receive public input on amending the Town of Atoka’s 

Municipal Zoning Ordinance by the following: 

All interested persons are encouraged to attend and to comment on this rezoning. 

 

 

 



January 12, 2021 

Exhibit F 

 

TOWN OF ATOKA 
 

334 Atoka-Munford Avenue 

Atoka, Tennessee  38004 

Phone: (901) 837-5300 
 

www.TownofAtoka.com 
 

MEMORANDUM 

 

To : Board of Mayor & Aldermen 

From : W. Daryl Walker, Mayor 

Re : Appointments for the 2020/2021 Board of Aldermen 

 

January 12, 2021 

 

Vice Mayor 

 

Section 7 (c) of the Atoka Municipal Charter establishes the position of Vice Mayor and established a 

method for filling the position.   

 

"The Mayor at the first regular meeting after the newly elected Aldermen have taken 

office, following each biennial election, shall appoint one of the Alderman to serve as 

Vice-Mayor for a term of two (2) years." 

 

Standing Committees 

 

Title 2, Chapter 1, Section 2-101 of the Atoka Municipal Code of Ordinances establishes the authority to 

create committees as necessary for the general welfare of the Town.  On October 2, 2012, the Board of 

Mayor & Aldermen approved resolution 12-10-04, establishing three standing Board committees and 

authorizing, empowering, and directing the Mayor to appoint a Chair and Vice-Chair for each of the 

committees.   

 

As required by resolution, I am hereby making the following appointments for a term of two (2) years: 

 

 Finance & Administration    Public Safety 

  Chair – Barry Akin     Chair – Danny Feldmayer 

  Vice-Chair – John Harber     Vice-Chair – Christy Renfrow 

 

 Public Works 

  Chair – Brett Giannini 

  Vice-Chair – Cody Pace 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

_____________________  

Mayor  



January 12, 2021 

Exhibit G 
ORDINANCE NO. ___________________ 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE TOWN OF ATOKA’S MUNICIPAL ZONING MAP 

BY REZONING KAREN STOKES’ PROPERTY LOCATED AT 673 MAPLE DRIVE, 

FROM R-1 (SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) TO N-C (NEIGHBORHOOD 

COMMERCIAL) 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Sections 13-7-201 and 13-7-202 a zoning 

ordinance and map have been adopted for the Town of Atoka; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the request to rezone the property is in compliance with both the Growth Policies and 

the Future Land Use and Transportation Plan adopted by the Planning Commission; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Atoka Municipal-Regional Planning Commission has recommended that the 

following property be reclassified from its current zoning designation to the proposed zoning designation; 

and, 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Atoka Board of Mayor and Aldermen pursuant 

to Section 13-7-203, Tennessee Code Annotated, the time and place was published with fifteen days 

advance notice. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN OF 

THE TOWN OF ATOKA: 

 

 SECTION 1. That property owned by Karen Stokes (Parcel 107.06 on Tipton County Tax Map) 

be reclassified from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) District to N-C (Neighborhood Commercial) District. 

 

 SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its final passage, the public 

welfare requiring it. 

 

 PASSED on the First Consideration by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, 

Tennessee on the 12th day of January 2021. 

 

 PUBLIC HEARING held by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, Tennessee 

on the 9th day of February 2021. 

 

 PASSED on the Second Consideration by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, 

Tennessee on the 9th day of February 2021. 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        W. Daryl Walker, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Town Recorder 

 

 



January 12, 2021 

Exhibit G  

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 13-7-203 and 13-7-303 notice is hereby given 15 

days in advance, of a public hearing to be held by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of Atoka, 

Tennessee on the 9th day of February 2021 at 6:45 PM at Atoka’s Town Hall. The hearing is to 

receive public input on amending the Town of Atoka’s Municipal Zoning Map by reclassifying 

the following property: 

 

 Property owned by Karen Stokes (Parcel 107.06 on Tipton County Tax Map), 673 Maple 

Drive from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) District to N-C (Neighborhood Commercial) District. 

 

All interested persons are encouraged to attend and to comment on this rezoning. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



KAREN STOKES PROPERTY – RE-ZONING REQUEST 

 

 



January 12, 2021 

Exhibit H ORDINANCE NO. ____________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE TOWN OF ATOKA’S MUNICIPAL ZONING MAP 

BY REZONING MUNFORD DEVELOPMENT COMPANY’S PROPERTY, LOCATED 

OFF MAPLE DRIVE, FROM R-1 (SINGLE-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL) DISTRICT TO R-

2 (MEDIUM DENSITY RESIDENTIAL) DISTRICT 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Sections 13-7-201 and 13-7-202 a zoning ordinance 

and map have been adopted for the Town of Atoka; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the request to rezone the property is in compliance with both the Growth Policies and the 

Future Land Use and Transportation Plan adopted by the Planning Commission; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Atoka Municipal-Regional Planning Commission has recommended that the following 

property be reclassified from its current zoning designation to the proposed zoning designation; and, 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing was held before the Atoka Board of Mayor and Aldermen pursuant to Section 

13-7-203, Tennessee Code Annotated, the time and place was published with fifteen days advance notice. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN OF 

THE TOWN OF ATOKA: 

 

 SECTION 1. That property owned by Munford Development Company (Parcels 23.01, 61.03, 61.0 

on Tipton County Tax Maps) be reclassified from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) District to R-2 (Medium 

Density Residential) District. 

 

SECTION 2. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon its final passage, the public 

welfare requiring it. 

 

 PASSED on the First Consideration by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, 

Tennessee on the 12th day of January, 2021. 

 

 PUBLIC HEARING held by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, Tennessee 

on the 9th day of February, 2021. 

 

 PASSED on the Second Consideration by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of the Town of Atoka, 

Tennessee on the 9th day of February, 2021. 

 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        W. Daryl Walker, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________ 

Town Recorder 
 



January 12, 2021 

Exhibit H 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

 

Pursuant to Tennessee Code Annotated Section 13-7-203 and 13-7-303 notice is hereby given 15 

days in advance, of a public hearing to be held by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen of Atoka, 

Tennessee on the 9th day of February 2021 at 6:45 PM at Atoka’s Town Hall. The hearing is to 

receive public input on amending the Town of Atoka’s Municipal Zoning Map by reclassifying 

the following property: 

 

 Property owned by Munford Development Company (Parcels 23.01, 61.03, 61.0 on Tipton 

County Tax Maps) off of Maple Drive, from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) District to R-2 

(Medium-Density Residential) District. 

 

All interested persons are encouraged to attend and to comment on this rezoning. 

 

 

 

 

 

 











C
o

d
e

 E
n

fo
rc

e
m

e
n

t 
M

o
n

th
ly

 R
e

p
o

rt
 

2
0

2
0

P
E

R
M

IT
 I

N
F

O
R

M
A

T
IO

N
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

T
O

T
A

L

B
u

ild
in

g
 P

e
rm

it
 -

 C
o

m
m

e
rc

ia
l

1
1

2

B
u

ild
in

g
 P

e
rm

it
 -

 I
n

d
u

st
ri

a
l

0

B
u

ild
in

g
 P

e
rm

it
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l -
 A

d
d

it
io

n
1

1
2

1
2

1
2

1
0

B
u

ild
in

g
 P

e
rm

it
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l -
 N

e
w

 B
u

ild
5

8
6

1
4

9
9

1
4

1
1

1
3

6
6

1
0

1
1

1

B
u

ild
in

g
 P

e
rm

it
 -

 R
e

si
d

e
n

ti
a

l -
 U

p
st

a
ir

s 
Fi

n
is

h
1

2
2

1
1

3
2

1
2

M
is

c 
P

e
rm

it
 -

 D
e

ta
ch

e
d

 G
a

ra
g

e
1

1
2

M
is

c 
P

e
rm

it
 -

 F
e

n
ce

1

M
is

c 
P

e
rm

it
 -

 F
ir

e
w

o
rk

s 
St

a
n

d
2

2
1

1
1

7

M
is

c 
P

e
rm

it
 -

 P
o

o
l P

e
rm

it
1

5
4

5
1

1
2

1
1

3
0

M
is

c 
P

e
rm

it
 -

 S
ig

n
 P

e
rm

it
1

1
1

1
1

1
6

M
is

c 
P

e
rm

it
 -

 S
to

ra
g

e
 S

h
e

d
2

3
6

3
4

2
4

7
2

3
3

T
O

T
A

L 
P

E
R

M
IT

 I
N

F
O

R
M

A
T

IO
N

9
1

4
9

1
7

1
8

2
6

2
4

1
7

2
9

1
5

2
0

1
6

2
1

3

C
E

R
T

IF
IC

A
T

E
 O

F
 O

C
C

U
P

A
N

C
Y

JA
N

F
E

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

JU
N

JU
L

A
U

G
S

E
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
E

C
T

O
T

A
L

C
e

rt
if

ic
a

te
 o

f 
O

cc
u

p
a

n
cy

 -
 C

o
m

m
e

rc
ia

l
1

1

C
e

rt
if

ic
a

te
 o

f 
O

cc
u

p
a

n
cy

 -
 I

n
d

u
st

ri
a

l
0

C
e

rt
if

ic
a

te
 o

f 
O

cc
u

p
a

n
cy

 -
 R

e
si

d
e

n
ti

a
l

5
7

1
1

7
1

2
1

9
7

4
1

7
7

2
7

1
0

5

T
O

T
A

L 
C

E
R

T
IF

IC
A

T
E

 O
F

 O
C

C
U

P
A

N
C

IE
S

5
7

1
1

7
1

2
1

9
7

4
1

7
7

2
8

1
0

6

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 I
N

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
S

JA
N

F
E

B
M

A
R

A
P

R
M

A
Y

JU
N

JU
L

A
U

G
S

E
P

O
C

T
N

O
V

D
E

C
T

O
T

A
L

Fo
rm

 B
o

a
rd

 /
 S

e
t 

B
a

ck
 I

n
sp

e
ct

io
n

4
1

1
1

0
5

1
1

3
1

5
9

3
4

6
6

Fo
o

ti
n

g
 I

n
sp

e
ct

io
n

1
6

7

P
lu

m
b

in
g

 I
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
9

6
8

8
8

7
 

3
1

1
1

6
7

1
2

9
5

Sh
e

e
ti

n
g

 I
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
5

7
3

7
3

7
5

1
2

1
0

9
9

7
7

B
ri

ck
 T

ie
s 

In
sp

e
ct

io
n

1
2

9
7

6
3

7
7

6
1

2
7

6
1

0
9

2

Fr
a

m
in

g
 I

n
sp

e
ct

io
n

9
1

2
7

9
6

1
4

8
5

1
0

8
6

2
1

1
1

5

In
su

la
ti

o
n

 I
n

sp
e

ct
io

n
3

1
2

3
5

5
6

7
2

1
0

4
6

1
0

7
3

T
O

T
A

L 
B

U
IL

D
LI

N
G

 I
N

S
P

E
C

T
IO

N
S

4
2

4
0

3
3

4
2

3
4

4
3

4
0

2
4

7
0

5
4

3
7

6
6

5
2

5

C
O

D
E

 E
N

F
O

R
C

E
M

E
N

T
 A

C
T

IO
N

S
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

T
O

T
A

L

M
u

n
ic

ip
a

l C
o

u
rt

 C
it

a
ti

o
n

s
0

P
ro

p
e

rt
y 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 -

 C
lo

se
d

1
7

2
2

1
8

2
8

3
3

2
0

3
7

3
9

1
7

2
1

2
4

1
2

2
8

8

P
ro

p
e

rt
y 

M
a

in
te

n
a

n
ce

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 -

 R
e

ce
iv

e
d

1
9

1
9

5
8

4
6

6
3

4
3

5
6

9
1

4
7

3
6

2
0

1
3

5
1

1

T
O

T
A

L 
C

O
D

E
 E

N
F

O
R

C
E

M
E

N
T

 A
C

T
IO

N
S

3
6

4
1

7
6

7
4

9
6

6
3

9
3

1
3

0
6

4
5

7
4

4
2

5
7

9
9

P
E

R
M

IT
 F

E
E

S
JA

N
F

E
B

M
A

R
A

P
R

M
A

Y
JU

N
JU

L
A

U
G

S
E

P
O

C
T

N
O

V
D

E
C

T
O

T
A

L

C
o

lle
ct

e
d

 F
e

e
s

$
2

,6
9

6
$

3
,6

7
2

$
3

,6
3

8
$

7
,7

0
0

$
5

,5
5

1
$

1
1

,8
3

2
$

8
,3

5
5

$
6

,7
5

8
$

9
,0

3
5

$
4

,5
2

0
$

4
,3

3
4

$
5

,6
8

0
$

7
3

,7
7

2

T
O

T
A

L 
P

E
R

M
IT

 F
E

E
S

$
2

,6
9

6
$

3
,6

7
2

$
3

,6
3

8
$

7
,7

0
0

$
5

,5
5

1
$

1
1

,8
3

2
$

8
,3

5
5

$
6

,7
5

8
$

9
,0

3
5

$
4

,5
2

0
$

4
,3

3
4

$
5

,6
8

0
$

7
3

,7
7

2

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

Fe
n

ce
 P

e
rm

it
s 

is
su

e
d

: 
1

 



ATOKA FIRE DEPARTMENT

MONTHLY REPORT

December-20

Incidents Current Month Previous Month
Current Month 

Last Year
Year to Date Dollar Loss Dollar Saved

Structure Fires-Atoka 4 3 2 19 $2,500 $300,000

Structure Fires-County Area 2 1 3 29

Total 6 4 5 48 $2,500 $300,000

Fires Other-Atoka 5 6 13 57

Fires Other-County Area 2 2 4 17

Total 7 8 17 74

HazMat Calls-Atoka 3 2 3 12

HazMat Calls-County Area 0 0 0 0

Total 3 2 3 12

MVA-Atoka 15 8 13 88

MVA-County Area 5 1 3 23

Total 20 9 16 111

EMS Calls-Atoka 68 58 48 655

EMS Calls-County Area 5 1 9 80

Total 73 59 57 735

Other Calls (Service, Good 

Intent)-Atoka 7 2 4 86

Other Calls (Service, Good 

Intent)-County Area 0 1 0 12

Smoke Alarm Checks 60 28 49 407

Smoke Alarm Installs 5 10 1 39

Total 7 3 4 98

Mutual Aid Given 5 1 9 38

Mutual Aid Received 9 2 7 32

Total Calls-Atoka 102 79 83 917 $2,500 $300,000

Total Calls-County Area 14 6 19 161 $0 $0

Totals for the Month 116 85 102 1078 $2,500 $300,000

Vehicle Fleet Status

ENGINE 11 Smeal

ENGINE 12 Wilson

ENGINE 13 Pierce

BRUSH TRUCK 13 Ford

Reserve Firefighter Hours Training Work Total Hours YTD Hours

45 147 192 2848

Comments

31 Bad batteries and pump

8 Computer module short/Defrost not working

DAYS OUT OF SERVICE COMMENTS

4 Santa's Ride

5



Atoka Parks and Recreation
January Monthly Report- Calendar Year 2020-2021

This Year Last Year

Camp- Fall Break 7 9 365.00$          550.00$                    

Camp - Spring Break N/A (COVID)

Camp - Summer - Lego Camp 13

Camp - Summer - Adventure Camp 16 25 705.00$          1,240.00$                 

Class - Art - Fall 19 10 904.40$          1,425.00$                 

Class - Art - Spring 25

Class - Art - Summer N/A

Sport - A - Kickball - Fall (teams) 5 5 1,187.98$       1,466.00$                 

Sport - A - Kickball - Spring (teams) N/A (COVID)

Sport - A - Softball (teams) 9 (2020) 11 (2019) 3,221.20$       3,600.00$                 

Sport - Little Sports - Winter 20

Sport - Y - Little Sports - Blast Ball 34 (2020)

Sport - Y - Little Sports - Tball 26 (2020)

Sport - Y - Soccer - AYSO - Fall 150 172 8,385.94$       10,500.00$               

Sport - Y - Soccer - AYSO - Spring N/A (COVID)

Sport - Y - Softball - DYSB - Fall 280 260

Sport - Y - Softball - DYSB - Spring N/A (COVID)

This Year Last Year

Event - Atoka BBQ Fest (teams) CANCELLED DUE TO COVID

Event - Christmas Decorating 14 14 $189.34

Event - Easter Bunny Brunch CANCELLED DUE TO COVID

Event - Rock the Block 300+ cars 1,000-2,000 11,070.55$     -$                           

Event-Autumn in Atoka 50 N/A - 200.00$                    

Event - Safe Night Out 1,100 1,000 $3,259.00 3,775.00$                 

Event - Santa's Ride - Meet/Greet MEET/GREET CANCELLED 100+ w/ Tree Lighting

Event - Tree Lighting 200+ 300+ TBA (Feb)

Movies in the Park: Frozen 2 48 cars 100 - -$                           

Tournament (1-day) - Sweet Southern Heat Showdown 17 teams N/A 350.00$                    

This Year Last Year

Rentals - Facility Rentals -$                        -$                        170.00$          300.00$                    

Sales - Concession Stand - NLP -$                        -$                        20,952.00$     19,853.13$               

Sales - Concession Stand - WP -$                        -$                        857.77$          1,807.66$                 

This Year Last Year

Q-Alert Service Requests Closed 2 2 9 41

Santa's Ride went great this year and was a lot of fun for all. The Santa tracker was a great add and we got great feedback from all. We had the Christmas Decorating Contest 

again. We posted all of the houses and I know of many that enjoyed going to see our line-up for the contest. We got great participation in the People's Choice Award. After all 

the Christmas events we have worked on honey do lists and preparing all the documents for BBQ Fest to be posted. Along with prepping for Winter Little Sports that will 

hopefully start end of January now due to the current Executive Order. 

Program / League Information

Program CostDescription
Participants

Fees Collected

Description

Description

Description

Current Month

Current Month

Participants
Event Cost

Fees/Donations 

Collected

Last Fiscal Year
Current Fiscal 

YTD

Special Event Information

Fiscal Performance

Citizen Service / Park Maintenance

Comments

Last Year
Current Year 

to Date



C
it

at
io

n
s

Ja
n

u
ar

y
F

eb
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

g
u

st
S

ep
te

m
b

er
O

ct
o
b

er
N

o
v
em

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er
T

o
ta

l 
Y

T
D

20
19

20
18

2
0
1
7

2
0
1
6

C
it

y
5

2
6

8
3

0
4

3
3

2
7

3
0

8
2

2
7

1
3

3
2

1
8

4
1

6
6

3
4

61
4

7
2
1

9
2
6

G
en

er
al

 S
es

si
o
n

s
6

1
9

1
0

5
1

2
5

4
9

1
2

3
5

1
9

1
1

3
8

25
3

2
3
9

2
5
6

W
ar

n
in

g
s

1
5

4
2

0
3

9
3

3
5

1
0

3
7

3
8

0
1

2
8

9
9

5
5

9
1

7
6

1
,1

9
0

1
6

7
2

34
33

4
0
0
4

3
5
3
7

T
o
ta

l
2

1
2

2
9

0
1

3
3

4
4

1
4

8
1

0
5

1
1

4
2

1
9

1
3

8
7

1
1

2
8

9
5

1
,6

9
7

2
4

4
4

43
00

4
9
6
4

4
8
1
3

Ja
n

u
ar

y
F

eb
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

g
u

st
S

ep
te

m
b

er
O

ct
o
b

er
N

o
v
em

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er
T

o
ta

l 
Y

T
D

C
al

ls
2

5
7

2
6

4
2

7
7

2
5

0
3

0
0

2
3

9
3

3
1

3
1

3
2

4
3

3
1

4
2

7
6

3
1

1
3

,3
7

5
3

8
2

7
35
38

3
6
5
8

3
8
5
1

R
ep

o
rt

s
4

0
4

9
5

6
4

5
4

3
4

5
5

2
5

0
3

2
3

8
4

9
5

3
5

5
2

6
3

3
57
3

5
8
7

6
2
3

M
o
to

r 
V

eh
ic

le
 A

cc
id

en
ts

1
8

2
5

2
2

1
1

8
1

9
1

3
1

4
1

0
1

7
1

7
2

1
1

9
5

2
2

9
19
9

2
2
1

2
5
6

A
la

rm
s

1
6

1
6

2
2

1
9

2
3

2
2

2
7

2
5

1
6

2
0

1
9

2
3

2
4

8
3

7
8

38
2

4
0
4

3
9
3

A
rr

es
ts

1
3

1
4

1
0

1
2

1
5

8
1

3
1

4
3

6
1

0
8

1
2

6
1

4
2

18
6

2
4
6

2
9
5

A
ss

is
t 

O
th

er
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
2

6
2

4
2

2
1

1
2

3
1

5
2

0
2

5
2

2
1

1
1

9
1

6
2

3
4

3
0

0
25
7

1
6
8

1
6
7

D
is

p
at

ch
7

1
0

8
1

6
6

1
9

4
3

7
6

4
3

6
0

5
6

4
0

7
4

4
6

0
1

5
7

4
6

0
5

5
7

5
7

,5
6

9
9

7
9

4
12
48
3

1
3
3
3
7

1
4
0
8
5

R
es

er
v
e 

H
o
u

rs
1

2
1

7
8

5
6

0
0

0
0

9
0

2
3

0
1

5
3

0
2

1
1

8
4

75
6

1
4
1
7

1
7
7
1

V
eh

ic
le

 M
il

ea
g
e

2
3

,7
6

1
2

2
,5

2
5

2
1

,0
0

8
1

8
,6

1
3

2
1

,0
5

2
2

0
,0

4
5

1
8

,9
3

7
1

9
,8

8
4

1
9

,7
3

5
2

1
,1

7
2

2
0

,9
3

3
2

1
,9

9
1

2
4

9
,6

5
6

2
4

3
7

4
2

25
26
62

2
4
1
5
1
8

2
5
7
2
7
9

C
o
m

m
en

ts

P
ai

d
Ja

n
u

ar
y

F
eb

ru
ar

y
M

ar
ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g
u

st
S

ep
te

m
b

er
O

ct
o
b

er
N

o
v
em

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er
T

o
ta

l 
Y

T
D

N
ew

 S
y
st

em
 C

it
at

io
n

s
4

,6
8

9
.2

5
5

,9
4

4
.7

5
6

,0
7

0
.0

0
1

,2
1

3
.7

5
1

,8
7

2
.5

0
3

,3
6

7
.0

0
4

,8
2

3
.7

5
3

,0
1

9
.7

5
4

,5
8

7
.2

5
4

,3
7

3
.5

0
1

,6
9

7
.0

0
2

,2
4

7
.0

0
$

4
3

,9
0

5
.5

0

O
ld

 S
y
st

em
 C

it
at

io
n

s
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

2
3

.7
5

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
9

8
.7

5
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

$
2

2
2

.5
0

1
0

+
 y

ea
rs

 o
ld

1
2

5
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

1
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

$
2

2
5

.0
0

T
o
ta

l 
P

a
id

4
,8

1
4

.2
5

5
,9

4
4

.7
5

6
,1

9
3

.7
5

1
,2

1
3

.7
5

1
,8

7
2

.5
0

3
,3

6
7

.0
0

4
,8

2
3

.7
5

3
,0

1
9

.7
5

4
,6

8
6

.0
0

4
,3

7
3

.5
0

1
,7

9
7

.0
0

2
,2

4
7

.0
0

$
4

4
,3

5
3

.0
0

4
7

,7
6

7
.5

0
45
70
9.
25

49
,8
7
1
.0
0

6
2
,5
1
8
.0
0

W
ri

te
 O

ff
Ja

n
u

ar
y

F
eb

ru
ar

y
M

ar
ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g
u

st
S

ep
te

m
b

er
O

ct
o
b

er
N

o
v
em

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er
T

o
ta

l 
Y

T
D

D
ec

ea
se

d
/O

th
er

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

T
o
ta

l 
W

ri
te

 O
ff

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
0

.0
0

$
0

.0
0

U
n

p
ai

d
Ja

n
u

ar
y

F
eb

ru
ar

y
M

ar
ch

A
p

ri
l

M
ay

Ju
n

e
Ju

ly
A

u
g
u

st
S

ep
te

m
b

er
O

ct
o
b

er
N

o
v
em

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er

P
ay

m
en

ts
 P

en
d

in
g
 b

y
 J

u
d

g
e

2
,0

3
5

.5
0

1
,6

3
3

.2
5

1
,7

7
5

.7
5

1
,3

4
0

.2
5

1
,1

8
4

.5
0

1
,3

7
3

.2
5

6
8

1
.5

0
9

8
6

.7
5

1
,3

4
8

.7
5

6
9

6
.5

0
6

6
4

.5
0

2
6

1
.0

0

F
ai

lu
re

 t
o
 A

p
p

ea
r/

P
ay

8
8

0
.2

5
1

,8
7

1
.2

5
1

,3
1

4
.5

0
0

.0
0

0
.0

0
1

,4
7

2
.5

0
1

,7
8

0
.5

0
9

0
3

.5
0

1
,5

0
9

.0
0

4
8

8
.0

0
2

4
6

.5
0

1
,8

7
0

.5
0

M
o
n

th
ly

 U
n

p
a

id
2

,9
1

5
.7

5
3

,5
0

4
.5

0
3

,0
9

0
.2

5
1

,3
4

0
.2

5
1

,1
8

4
.5

0
2

,8
4

5
.7

5
2

,4
6

2
.0

0
1

,8
9

0
.2

5
2

,8
5

7
.7

5
1

,1
8

4
.5

0
9

1
1

.0
0

2
,1

3
1

.5
0

1
0

+
 y

ea
rs

 o
ld

Ja
n

u
ar

y
F

eb
ru

ar
y

M
ar

ch
A

p
ri

l
M

ay
Ju

n
e

Ju
ly

A
u

g
u

st
S

ep
te

m
b

er
O

ct
o
b

er
N

o
v
em

b
er

D
ec

em
b

er

1
0

+
 y

ea
rs

 o
ld

 -
 B

al
an

ce
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
9

,6
7

5
.0

0
0

.0
0

9
,6

7
5

.0
0

9
,6

7
5

.0
0

9
,7

8
8

.7
5

9
,9

0
2

.5
0

9
,9

0
2

.5
0

9
,9

0
2

.5
0

1
0

,0
0

5
.0

0
1

0
,0

0
5

.0
0

M
o
n

th
ly

 U
n

p
a

id
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
9

,6
7

5
.0

0
0

.0
0

9
,6

7
5

.0
0

9
,6

7
5

.0
0

9
,7

8
8

.7
5

9
,9

0
2

.5
0

9
,9

0
2

.5
0

9
,9

0
2

.5
0

1
0

,0
0

5
.0

0
1

0
,0

0
5

.0
0

D
el

in
q

u
en

t
B

al
an

ce

A
ll

 U
n

p
ai

d
 C

it
at

io
n

s
$

3
4

,8
0

4
.0

0

(D
el

in
q

u
en

t 
- 

P
ai

d
 D

el
in

q
u

en
t 

- 
W

ri
te

 O
ff

 +
 F

T
A

/F
T

P
 +

 1
0

+
 y

rs
 =

 B
al

an
ce

)

C
o
m

m
en

ts
C

o
u

rt
s 

C
lo

se
d

 i
n

 A
p

ri
l 

d
u

e 
to

 C
o
v
id

-1
9

A
to

k
a 

P
o
li

ce
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
S

ta
ti

st
ic

s 
2

0
2

0

T
o
w

n
 C

o
u

rt
 F

in
es

 &
 C

o
st

s



A
to

ka
 P

u
b

lic
 W

o
rk

s
M

o
n

th
ly

 R
ep

o
rt

 -
 C

al
en

d
ar

 Y
ea

r 
2

0
2

0

C
U

ST
O

M
ER

 A
C

C
O

U
N

TS
JA

N
U

A
R

Y
FE

B
R

U
A

R
Y

M
A

R
C

H
A

P
R

IL
M

A
Y

JU
N

E
JU

LY
A

U
G

U
ST

SE
P

TE
M

B
ER

O
C

TO
B

ER
N

O
V

EM
B

ER
D

EC
EM

B
ER

TO
TA

L

N
EW

 A
C

C
O

U
N

TS
 O

P
EN

ED
2

2
1

2
2

2
1

5
2

7
3

1
3

8
2

8
2

9
2

8
2

4
1

7
2

9
3

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 A

C
C

O
U

N
TS

 C
LO

SE
D

3
1

1
1

2
2

8
1

2
1

1
1

5
9

8
1

1
6

1
0

8

N
ET

 C
H

A
N

G
E 

- 
C

U
ST

O
M

ER
 A

C
C

O
U

N
TS

1
9

1
1

0
1

3
1

9
1

9
2

7
1

3
2

0
2

0
1

3
1

1
1

8
5

SE
W

ER
 S

ER
V

IC
E 

IS
SU

ES
JA

N
U

A
R

Y
FE

B
R

U
A

R
Y

M
A

R
C

H
A

P
R

IL
M

A
Y

JU
N

E
JU

LY
A

U
G

U
ST

SE
P

TE
M

B
ER

O
C

TO
B

ER
N

O
V

EM
B

ER
D

EC
EM

B
ER

TO
TA

L

TA
N

K
 P

U
M

P
IN

G
 -

 V
EN

D
O

R
1

7
1

4
2

4
2

5
4

0
2

3
3

6
2

2
2

9
1

9
1

8
3

0
2

9
7

TO
TA

L 
SE

W
ER

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
IS

SU
ES

1
7

1
4

2
4

2
5

4
0

2
3

3
6

2
2

2
9

1
9

1
8

3
0

2
9

7

SO
LI

D
 W

A
ST

E 
SE

R
V

IC
E 

IS
SU

ES
JA

N
U

A
R

Y
FE

B
R

U
A

R
Y

M
A

R
C

H
A

P
R

IL
M

A
Y

JU
N

E
JU

LY
A

U
G

U
ST

SE
P

TE
M

B
ER

O
C

TO
B

ER
N

O
V

EM
B

ER
D

EC
EM

B
ER

TO
TA

L

N
EW

 C
U

ST
O

M
ER

S 
(d

el
iv

er
ed

 c
an

)
2

0
2

7
3

6
2

7
2

9
4

0
4

2
3

1
3

6
2

7
2

3
1

6
3

5
4

M
IS

SE
D

 C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
S

6
2

3
3

8
7

1
8

3
0

8
0

1
2

7
4

8
3

9
6

0
5

9
5

9
8

D
A

M
A

G
ED

 /
 R

EP
LA

C
ED

 C
A

N
S

8
4

9
5

2
1

1
0

1
2

4
1

3
9

6
8

O
TH

ER
 /

 T
R

A
SH

 
1

1
8

4
0

2
1

2
3

7
2

1
4

1
1

6
1

0
1

3
5

TO
TA

L 
SO

LI
D

 W
A

ST
E 

SE
R

V
IC

E 
IS

SU
ES

1
0

1
7

2
1

7
2

5
2

7
3

1
2

4
1

8
6

1
1

2
8

3
8

9
4

7
4

4
1

1
5

5

W
A

TE
R

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
IS

SU
ES

JA
N

U
A

R
Y

FE
B

R
U

A
R

Y
M

A
R

C
H

A
P

R
IL

M
A

Y
JU

N
E

JU
LY

A
U

G
U

ST
SE

P
TE

M
B

ER
O

C
TO

B
ER

N
O

V
EM

B
ER

D
EC

EM
B

ER
TO

TA
L

M
ET

ER
 S

ET
 -

 P
R

IM
A

R
Y 

SE
R

V
IC

E
3

1
6

9
2

3
3

1
3

2
0

3
3

6

M
ET

ER
 S

ET
 -

 A
U

X
IL

IA
R

Y 
SE

R
V

IC
E

1
0

0
6

2
2

2
1

1
0

0
0

1
5

M
ET

ER
 M

A
IN

TE
N

A
N

C
E 

1
1

0
0

0
0

3
0

1
0

2
0

8

M
ET

ER
S 

R
EP

LA
C

ED
/ 

A
n

te
n

n
a 

A
d

d
ed

/ 
R

eg
is

2
1

1
2

1
1

4
1

0
0

6
6

1
8

0
3

1
2

7

A
D

JU
ST

M
EN

TS
5

4
9

5
4

1
1

3
9

1
4

1
1

4
7

0

LA
TE

 P
A

YM
EN

TS
4

9
1

5
4

5
5

7
2

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

4
9

7
5

9
5

4
2

7
4

2
8

4
3

4
3

1
0

4
2

9
9

N
O

N
-P

A
YM

EN
T 

D
IS

C
O

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

7
8

5
2

N
/A

N
/A

N
/A

1
1

6
7

7
9

6
6

8
7

8
5

5
6

8
6

8
8

TO
TA

L 
W

A
TE

R
 S

ER
V

IC
E 

IS
SU

ES
6

0
0

6
0

4
5

8
9

2
1

2
2

1
2

3
5

8
3

6
9

6
5

7
5

5
4

0
5

0
2

3
8

8
5

2
4

3

W
O

R
K

 O
R

D
ER

S
JA

N
U

A
R

Y
FE

B
R

U
A

R
Y

M
A

R
C

H
A

P
R

IL
M

A
Y

JU
N

E
JU

LY
A

U
G

U
ST

SE
P

TE
M

B
ER

O
C

TO
B

ER
N

O
V

EM
B

ER
D

EC
EM

B
ER

TO
TA

L

W
A

TE
R

1
5

0
1

4
7

8
3

3
0

1
7

1
5

2
6

8
1

2
8

6
2

1
3

9
7

9
1

0
1

1
1

5
6

SE
W

ER
5

4
4

4
7

1
1

1
6

8
3

7
6

8
9

8
6

7
3

7
0

6
8

6
3

8
9

3

D
IT

C
H

ES
, O

TH
ER

 IS
SU

ES
1

0
6

7
1

3
4

8
2

9
3

5
0

9
0

6
1

5
2

5
4

4
6

3
5

7
7

4

U
TI

LI
TY

 L
O

C
A

TE
S

1
0

2
6

4
1

0
0

1
4

4
1

2
5

1
4

7
2

0
6

2
5

3
1

9
0

1
5

2
1

7
9

1
4

6
1

8
0

8

TO
TA

L 
W

O
R

K
 O

R
D

ER
S

4
1

2
3

2
6

2
8

8
3

7
2

3
1

8
4

2
5

4
5

3
5

2
8

9
0

5
3

7
7

3
7

2
3

4
5

5
1

2
1

W
A

ST
E 

P
R

O
 Q

U
A

R
TE

R
LY

  C
O

LL
EC

TI
O

N
JA

N
U

A
R

Y
FE

B
R

U
A

R
Y

M
A

R
C

H
A

P
R

IL
M

A
Y

JU
N

E
JU

LY
A

U
G

U
ST

SE
P

TE
M

B
ER

O
C

TO
B

ER
N

O
V

EM
B

ER
D

EC
EM

B
ER

TO
TA

L

W
A

ST
E 

C
O

LL
EC

TE
D

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

B
IL

LI
N

G
 IN

FO
R

M
A

TI
O

N
JA

N
U

A
R

Y
FE

B
R

U
A

R
Y

M
A

R
C

H
A

P
R

IL
M

A
Y

JU
N

E
JU

LY
A

U
G

U
ST

SE
P

TE
M

B
ER

O
C

TO
B

ER
N

O
V

EM
B

ER
D

EC
EM

B
ER

TO
TA

L

A
C

H
 A

C
C

O
U

N
TS

3
0

6
3

1
1

3
1

3
3

2
2

3
3

0
3

3
6

3
4

2
3

4
8

3
5

0
3

5
8

3
6

3
3

6
8

4
0

4
7

E-
B

IL
L 

A
C

C
O

U
N

TS
8

0
3

8
2

2
8

3
0

8
3

8
8

5
1

8
5

9
8

6
3

8
8

3
8

7
7

8
8

1
8

9
4

8
9

9
1

0
3

0
0

SO
LI

D
 W

A
ST

E 
C

U
ST

O
M

ER
S

2
6

1
6

2
6

3
1

2
6

3
8

2
6

5
8

2
6

6
5

2
6

8
0

2
7

0
2

2
7

1
1

2
7

2
6

2
7

5
9

2
7

7
0

2
7

7
6

3
2

3
3

2

R
EC

YC
LI

N
G

 C
U

ST
O

M
ER

S
1

9
4

5
1

9
5

7
1

9
6

0
1

9
8

7
2

0
0

1
2

0
2

1
2

0
4

7
2

0
5

7
2

0
7

8
2

1
1

1
2

1
1

4
2

1
2

5
2

4
4

0
3

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

P
ri

n
te

d
 : 

1
/8

/2
0

2
1


	Agenda.pdf (p.1)
	Agenda_Memo.pdf (p.2-3)
	ExA_Minutes Town of Atoka Board of Mayor and Aldermen Dec 08 2020.pdf (p.4-6)
	ExB_Atoka Summ 12.2020 GF.WT Packet .pdf (p.7-8)
	ExBB_Atoka_SalesTax.pdf (p.9)
	ExC_Ordinance_Miscellaneous Zoning Changes 2020.pdf (p.10-14)
	ExD_Ordinance_Combined Sign Amendments.pdf (p.15-20)
	ExE_Ordinance_Atoka Planned Unit Development PUD.pdf (p.21-36)
	ExF_Appointments_ViceMayor_Committees.pdf (p.37)
	ExG_Rezoning from R-1 to Neighborhood Commercial.pdf (p.38-39)
	ExGG_KAREN STOKES PROPERTY MAP.pdf (p.40)
	ExH_Maple Drive rezoning ordinance Munford Development.pdf (p.41-42)
	ExHH_Maple Drive Rezoning Request.pdf (p.43-46)
	xCode Enforcement Monthly Report 2020.pdf (p.47)
	xxAFD Monthly Run Report 2020.pdf (p.48)
	xxxJanuary_2021_ Parks Board Report.pdf (p.49)
	xxxx2020 to date stats.pdf (p.50)
	xxxxx2020_PublicWorks MonthlyReport.pdf (p.51)

